
 

    

HAMBLEN COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
 

 

Regularly Scheduled Monthly Meeting 

Thursday – May 19, 2016 

5:00 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

Open Meeting - Sheriff Esco Jarnagin 

 

Call to Order – Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge 

 

Prayer – Dr. Doug Brown, Witt Baptist Church 

 

Pledge of Allegiance – Commissioner Larry Carter 

 

Roll Call - County Clerk, Penny Petty 

 

 

 

Prepared under the direction of: 

Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



 

 

Order # Vote Item 

1  Recognition/Presentations/Proclamations (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
  a. Roland Zitt - Proclamation 

2  Public Comment Regarding Business of the Agenda Only (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
   

3  Appointments and Nominations (Commission  Chairman Rick Eldridge)  
  a. None 

4  Public Official Bonds (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
  a. None 

5  Recess as Hamblen County Legislative Body Open Public Hearing (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
a. Resolution 16-08 to Amend the Zoning Map of Hamblen County, Tennessee by Rezoning District 05, Tax Map 

0054E, Group B, Parcel 012.01 Bernie Circle, Talbott, TN 37877 Lot #23B-Blue Grass Acres From R-1 to A-1 
Close Public Hearing, Reconvene as Hamblen County Legislative Body (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 

6  
Vote 

Rezoning Resolution Vote (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
a. Resolution 16-08 to Amend the Zoning Map of Hamblen County, Tennessee by Rezoning District 05, Tax Map 

0054E, Group B, Parcel 012.01 Bernie Circle, Talbott, TN 37877 Lot #23B-Blue Grass Acres From R-1 to A-1 

7  Calendar and Rules Committee Report (Chairman John Smyth) 
 Vote 

Vote 
a. Approval of Consent Calendar Items 
b. Approval of Regular Calendar Items 

8.  
Vote 

Approval of Consent Calendar (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge)  
Consent Calendar  

9.  
Vote 

Building and Grounds Committee (Chairman Tim Goins) 
Hale Property (524 West 2

nd
 North Street, Morristown, TN 37814) 

10.  Finance Committee (Chairman Herbert Harville) 
 Vote 

Vote 
 

Vote 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 

 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 

 
Vote 
Vote 
Vote 

a. Approval of Monthly Checks – April 2016 
b. Resolution 16-09 Authorizing 2016-2017 Litter and Trash Collecting Grant Application 
c. Budget Amendments 

1. Fund #101 UT Ag Extension ($5,725) 
2. Fund #101 Chancery Court ($15,601) 
3. Fund #101 County Clerk Satellite Office ($11,454) 
4. Hamblen County Board of Education Budget Amendment #4 ($600,000) 

d. Bids/Proposals 
1. 2016 Inmate Bread Products 
2. 2016 Inmate Dairy Products 
3. 2016 Inmate Food Products and Supplies  
4. New Commercial Grade Dishwasher for Detention Facility 
5. 2016 New Non-Refurbished Personal Computers 

e. Hamblen County Department of Education Resolution to Transfer Funds from General Purpose School Funds to 
Federal Projects Fund for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 

f. Real Estate Services Contract Amended 
g. Commercial Lease for County Clerk’s Satellite Office 
h. Hamblen County Finance Department Purchasing Policies & Procedures 

11.  Public Comment – General (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 
   

12.  Announcements /Informational Items/Upcoming Meeting Dates ( Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 

 
 

a. June 13, 2016 – Committee Meetings:  11:30 a.m. – Health Dept. Conference Room 
b. June 23, 2016 – County Commission Meeting:  5:00 p.m. – Courthouse Large Courtroom 

13.  Adjournment (Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge) 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR CALENDAR 
       Thursday,  May 19,  2016  

              H a m b l e n  C o u n t y  L e g i s l a t i v e  B o d y  

REGULAR CALENDAR – May 19, 2016 

2 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



3 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



4 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



5 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



6 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County Government 
Calendar & Rules Committee 

Monday, May 9, 2016 
Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 

 
MINUTES 

 

 
Members Present: 
Howard Shipley Rick Eldridge Tim Goins Herbert Harville Hubert Davis 
John Smyth     
Members Absent: 
None 
 
Call to Order 
Chairman John Smyth called the meeting to order at 12:20 p.m. 
 
Visitors 
Linda Noe 
 
 
Review of Regular Calendar 
Motion (Tim Goins/Howard Shipley, all in favor) to approve the regular calendar as presented 
with the addition of the following: 

I. Item g. – Commercial Lease for County Clerk’s Satellite Office 
II. Item h. – Budget Amendment Satellite Office 

III. Item i. – Hamblen County Finance Department Purchasing Policies & Procedures 

 
 

Review of Consent Calendar 
Motion (Howard Shipley/Herbert Harville, all in favor) to approve the Consent Calendar items 
as presented. 
 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned 12:24 p.m. 
 
 

7 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



 Hamblen County Government 

CALENDAR & RULES COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, May 9, 2016  

Immediately Following Adjournment of Public Services Committee 

Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. Call to Order – Chairman John Smyth 

 

 

2. Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee – Chairman John Smyth 

(Visitors will be allotted 5 minutes to speak) 

 

 

3. Old Business - Chairman John Smyth 

a. None 

 

 

4. New Business - Chairman John Smyth 

a. Review of Regular Calendar Items – Chairman John Smyth 

b. Review of Consent Calendar Items – Chairman John Smyth 

 

 

5. Adjournment – Chairman John Smyth 

 

John Smyth 

Chairman 

 

Hubert Davis 

Vice-Chairman 

 

Rick Eldridge 

Ex-Officio 

 

Tim Goins 

Member 

 

Herbert Harville 

Member 

 

Howard Shipley 

Member 

 

C A L E N D A R  &  R U L E S  

C O M M I T T E E  

8 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



 

CONSENT CALENDAR                H a m b l e n  C o u n t y  L e g i s l a t i v e  B o d y               

Order # Item Placed From 

1  Approval of the Previous Month Minutes: 
Hamblen County Commission Meeting, - April 21, 2016 

 

Commission Chairman Rick Eldridge 

2  Approval of Notaries County Clerk Penny Petty 

3 Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society – Financial Reports for January/February/March 
2016 

Public Services Committee 

4 Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society Contract Renewal Letter Public Services Committee 

5  Expenditure Reports – April 2016 Finance Committee 

6 Planning Commission Building Permit Report – April 2016 Finance Committee 

7 County Attorney Invoices – April 2016 Finance Committee 

8 Coroner’s Monthly  Report – April 2016 Finance Committee 

9 Budget Amendments Approved by County Mayor 
a. Fund #101, Accounting and Budgeting, $5,380 
b. Fund #101, Circuit Court. - $4,530 
c. Fund #101, County Coroner/Medical Examiner - $1,200 
d. Fund #101, Sheriff’s Dept. - $400 
e. Fund #101, Tourism - $1,553 
f. Fund #116, Sanitation Management. - $22,000 
g. Fund #122, Drug Enforcement- $520 
h. Fund #121, Capital Outlay - $770 

 

Finance Committee 

CONSENT CALENDAR – May 19, 2016 

   

 

9 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



10 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



11 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



12 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



13 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



14 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



15 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



16 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



17 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



18 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



19 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



20 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



21 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



22 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



23 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



24 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



25 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



26 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



27 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



28 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



29 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



30 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



31 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



32 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



33 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



34 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



35 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



36 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



37 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



38 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



39 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



40 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



41 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



42 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



43 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



44 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



45 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



46 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



47 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



48 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



49 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



50 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



51 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



52 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



53 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



54 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



55 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



56 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



57 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



58 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



59 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



60 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



61 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



62 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



63 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



64 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



65 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



66 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



67 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



68 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



69 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



70 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



71 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



72 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



73 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



74 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



75 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



76 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



77 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



78 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



79 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



80 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



81 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



82 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



83 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



84 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



85 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



86 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



87 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



88 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



89 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



90 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



91 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



92 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



93 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



94 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



95 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



96 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



97 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



98 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



99 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



100 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



101 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



102 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



103 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



104 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



105 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



106 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



107 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



108 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



109 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



110 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



111 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



112 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



113 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



114 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



115 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



116 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



117 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



118 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



119 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



120 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



121 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



122 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



123 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



124 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



125 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



126 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



127 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



128 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



129 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



130 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



131 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



132 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



133 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



134 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



135 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



136 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



137 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



138 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



139 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



140 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



141 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



142 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



143 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



144 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



145 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



146 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



147 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



148 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



149 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



150 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



151 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



152 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



153 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



154 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



155 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



156 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



157 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



158 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



159 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



160 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



161 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



162 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



163 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



164 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



165 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



166 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Hamblen County Government 

Buildings & Grounds Committee 
Monday, May 9, 2016 

Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Members Present: 
Tim Goins Larry Carter Rick Eldridge Stancil Ford  
John Smyth Johnny Walker    
 
Members Absent:  
Louis “Doe” Jarvis 
Taylor Ward  
Dana Wampler 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Call to Order 
Chairman Tim Goins called the meeting to order at 11:30 a.m. 
 
 
Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee 
None 
 
 
Old Business 
a. None 
 
New Business 
a. Hale Property – Mayor Brittain explained that members of the family who own the Hale Property located at 

534 West Second North Street, Morristown will soon begin the process to develop it for commercial use 
but first wanted to give Hamblen County the opportunity to purchase the property.  Discussion of a 
purchase took place.  Commissioner Ford brought to the attention of the committee that the Broyles Real 
Estate & Auction Company property located at 530 West First North Street, Morristown is for sale and 
should that property be acquired the county would own the entire block where the courthouse is located.  

Motion (Stancil Ford/Larry Carter, all in favor) that Hamblen County is not interested in the purchase 
of 534 West Second North Street, Morristown and to look at 530 West First North Street, Morristown 
as a possible purchase.  

 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chair Goins adjourned the meeting at 11:35 a.m. 
 

167 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 1 

 

    

Hamblen County Government 

  BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, May 9, 2016 

Immediately Following Adjournment of Public Services Committee 

Hamblen County Health Department – Conference Room 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Tim Goins 

 

 

2. Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee – Chairman Tim Goins 

(Visitors will be allotted 5 minutes to speak) 

 

 

3. Old Business – Chairman Tm Goins 

a. None 

 

 

4. New Business – Chairman Tim Goins 

a. Hale Property – Commission Chair Rick Eldridge 

 

 

5. Items of Interest (No Action Necessary) – Chairman Tim Goins 

a. None 

 

 

6. Adjournment – Chairman Tim Goins 

B U I L I D N G  A N D  

G R O U N D S  

C O M M I T T E E  

Tim Goins 

Chairman 

 

Larry Carter 

Vice-Chairman 

 

Rick Eldridge 

Ex-Officio 

 

Stancil Ford 

Member 

 

Louis “Doe” Jarvis 

Member 

 

John Smyth 

Member 

 

Johnny Walker 

Member 

 

Dana Wampler 

Member 

 

Taylor Ward 

Member 

168 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 3 

 

Hamblen County Government 
Finance Committee 

Monday, May 9, 2016 
Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 

 
MINUTES 

Members Present: 
Herbert Harville Randy DeBord Rick Eldridge Hubert Davis John Smyth 
Howard Shipley Stancil Ford Louis “Doe” Jarvis Larry Carter  
 
Members Absent:  
Dana Wampler 
 
Call to Order 
Chairman Herbert Harville called the meeting to order at 11:35 a.m. 
 
 
Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee 
None 
 
Recurring Business 
a. Expenditure Reports - April 2016 (Information Only) 
b. Review of Monthly Checks Submitted by the County Mayor’s Office for the Month of April 2016 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/John Smyth, all in favor) to approve the April 2016 monthly checks 
submitted by the County Mayor’s Office. 

 
Old Business 
None 
 
New Business 
a. Resolution 16-09 Authorizing 2016-2017 Litter and Trash Collecting Grant Application 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Randy DeBord, all in favor) to approve Resolution 16-09 Authorizing 
the Application of the Litter and Trash Collecting Grant for FY 2016-2017 from the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation. 

 
b. Budget Amendments:  

i. Budget Amendment Fund #101 Agricultural Extension Office - $5,725 

Motion (Howard Shipley/Larry Carter, all in favor) to approve the Budget Amendment for Fund 
#101 Agricultural Extension Office in the amount $5,725. 

ii. Budget Amendment for Fund #101, Chancery Court $15,601 
Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Howard Shipley, all in favor) to approve the Budget Amendment for 
Fund #101 Chancery Court in the amount of $15,601 

iii. Budget Amendment for Fund #122, Drug Enforcement $75,000 
Approval of budget amendment died for lack of motion. 

 
c. Bids/Proposals:  

i. 2016 Inmate Bread Products 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Stancil Ford, all in favor) to award the bid for 2016 Inmate Bread 
Products to Flowers Baking Company. 
 

169 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 2 of 3 

 

ii. 2016 Inmate Dairy Products 
Motion (Stancil Ford/Howard Shipley, all in favor) to award the bid for 2016 Inmate Dairy 
Products to Prairie Farms. 
 

iii. 2016 Inmate Food Products and Supplies 
Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis /John Smyth, all in favor) to award the bid for 2016 Inmate Food 
Products to Gordon Food Services. 

 
iv. New Commercial Grade Dishwasher for Detention Facility 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis /Howard Shipley, all in favor) to award the bid for the New 
Commercial Grade Dishwasher to Strategic Equipment. 

 
v. 2016 New Non-Refurbished Personal Computers 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis /John Smyth, all in favor) to award the bid for 2016 New Non-
Refurbished Computers to SHI International Corp.  

 
d. Hamblen County Department of Education Amendment #3 - Increase of $600,000  

Motion (Howard Shipley/Larry Carter, all in favor) to approve the Budget Amendment increase 
in the amount of $600,000 for the Hamblen County Department of Education. 
 

e. Hamblen County Department of Education Resolution to Transfer Funds from General Purpose School Funds 
to Federal Projects Fund for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 - HCBOE Business Director Traci Antrican 
explained that the Hamblen County Board of Education is requesting to bring their General Fund up to 
$500,000 during the current fiscal year by transferring $200,000 from the General Purpose School Funds to 
the Federal Projects Fund.  This allows for monthly payments to be made while waiting for federal grant funds 
to be reimbursed. 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Stancil Ford, all in favor) to approve the Resolution to Transfer 
Funds from General Purpose School Funds to Federal Projects Fund for Fiscal Year Ending June 
30, 2016. 
 

f. Real Estate Services Contract Amended – County Mayor Bill Brittain presented the amended contract with LeBel 
Commercial Realty for Real Estate Services.   

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/John Smyth, all in favor) to approve the amendment to the Contract 
Agreement between Hamblen County Government and LeBel Commercial Realty. 

 

Added to Agenda - Chairman Herbert Harville requested to add the following to the Finance Committee Agenda: 
I. Item g. – Commercial Lease for County Clerk’s Satellite Office 

II. Item h. – Budget Amendment Satellite Office 
III. Item i. – Hamblen County Finance Department Purchasing Policies & Procedures 

Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/John Smyth, all in favor) to add the following to the Finance 
Committee Agenda: 

I. Item g. – Commercial Lease for County Clerk’s Satellite Office 
II. Item h. – Budget Amendment Satellite Office $11,454 

III. Item i. – Hamblen County Finance Department Purchasing Policies & Procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

170 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 3 of 3 

 

g. Commercial Lease for County Clerk’s Satellite Office 
Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Randy DeBord, 7 Yes/2 No - Stancil Ford and Larry Carter voted No) to 
approve the lease agreement with Mark Sawyer and Hamblen County Government to lease the 
property located at 2415 N. Davy Crockett Parkway, Morristown, Tennessee to be used as  the 
County Clerk’s Satellite Office. 
 

h. Budget Amendment County Clerk Satellite Office – Fund #101 $11,454 
Motion (Louis “Doe” Jarvis/Randy DeBord, all in favor) to approve the budget amendment for the 
County Clerk’s Satellite Office in the amount of $11,454. 

 
i. Hamblen County Finance Department – Purchasing Policies & Procedures 

Motion (John Smyth/Howard Shipley, all in favor) to approve the updated Hamblen County Finance 
Department Purchasing Policies & Procedures. 

 
Items of Interest (No Action Necessary) 
a. Planning Commission Building Permit Report – April 2016 
b. County Attorney Invoices – April 2016   
c. Coroner’s Monthly Report – April 2016 
d. Budget Amendments Approved by County Mayor 

i. Fund #101, Accounting and Budgeting, $5,380 
ii. Fund #101, Circuit Court. - $4,530 

iii. Fund #101, County Coroner/Medical Examiner - $1,200 
iv. Fund #101, Sheriff’s Dept. - $400 
v. Fund #101, Tourism - $1,553 

vi. Fund #116, Sanitation Management. - $22,000 
vii. Fund #122, Drug Enforcement- $520 

viii. Fund #121, Capital Outlay - $770 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Herbert Harville adjourned the meeting at 12:06 p.m. 

171 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 2 

 

   Hamblen County Government 

  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, May 9, 2016 

Immediately following the adjournment of the Buildings and Grounds Committee  

Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Herbert Harville 

 

 

2. Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee – Chairman Herbert Harville 

(Visitors will be allotted 5 minutes to speak) 

 

 

3. Recurring Business – Chairman Herbert Harville 

a. Expenditure Reports – April 2016 (Information Only)  

b. Review of Monthly Checks Submitted by the County Mayor’s Office 

 

 

4. Old Business – Chairman Herbert Harville 

a. None 

 

 

5. New Business – Chairman Herbert Harville 

a. Resolution 16-09 Authorizing 2016-2017 Litter and Trash Collecting Grant 

Application – County Mayor Bill Brittain 

b. Budget Amendments  

i. Fund #101 Agricultural Extension Office – UT Ag Extension Director 

Mannie Bedwell 

ii. Fund #101 Chancery Court - $15,601 – Clerk & Master Kathy Jones-

Terry 

iii. Fund #122 Drug Enforcement – Sheriff Esco Jarnagin 

c. Bids/Proposals – Finance Director Michelle Woods 

i. 2016 Inmate Bread Products 

ii. 2016 Inmate Dairy Products 

iii. 2016 Inmate Food Products and Supplies 

iv. New Commercial Grade Dishwasher for Detention Facility 

v. Personal Computers 

d. Hamblen County Department of Education Amendment #3 - Increase 

of $600,000 – HCBOE Business Supervisor Traci Antrican 

e. Hamblen County Department of Education – Resolution -  Resolution 

to Transfer Funds from General Purpose School Funds to Federal Projects 

Fund for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016  – HCBOE Business Supervisor 

Traci Antrican 

f. Real Estate Services Contract Amended – County Mayor Bill Brittain 

  

F I N A N C E  C O M M I T T E E  

Herbert Harville 

Chairman 

 

Randy DeBord 

Vice-Chairman 

 

Rick Eldridge 

Ex-Officio 

 

Larry Carter 

Member 

 

Hubert Davis 

Member 

 

Stancil Ford 

Member 

 

Louis “Doe” Jarvis 

Member 

 

Howard Shipley 

Member 

 

John Smyth 

Member 

 

Dana Wampler 

Member 

 

172 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

6. Items of Interest (No Action Necessary) – Chairman Herbert Harville 

a. Planning Commission Building Permit Report – April 2016 

b. County Attorney Invoices – April 2016   

c. Coroner’s Monthly Report – April 2016 

d. Budget Amendments Approved by County Mayor 

i. Fund #101, Accounting and Budgeting, $5,380 

ii. Fund #101, Circuit Court. - $4,530 

iii. Fund #101, County Coroner/Medical Examiner - $1,200 

iv. Fund #101, Sheriff’s Dept. - $400 

v. Fund #101, Tourism - $1,553 

vi. Fund #116, Sanitation Management. - $22,000 

vii. Fund #122, Drug Enforcement- $520 

viii. Fund #121, Capital Outlay - $770 

 

7. Adjournment – Chairman Herbert Harville 

173 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



174 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



175 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



176 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



177 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



178 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



179 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



180 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



181 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



182 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



183 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



184 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



185 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



186 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



187 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



188 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



189 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



190 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



191 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Resolution 16-09 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF HAMBLEN COUNTY, TENNESSEE  
AUTHORIZING THE 2016-2017 LITTER AND TRASH COLLECTING GRANT APPLICATION 

 

Resolution authorizing submission of an application for a Litter and Trash Collecting Grant 
for FY 2016-2017 from the Tennessee Department of Transportation and authorizing the 
acceptance of said grant. 
 
Whereas, the Hamblen County Commission intends to apply for the aforementioned grant 
from the Tennessee Department of Transportation, and 
 
Whereas, the contract for the grant for FY 2016-2017 will impose certain legal obligations 
upon Hamblen County. 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved: 
 

1. That Bill Brittain, County Mayor of Hamblen County, is hereby authorized to apply 
on behalf of Hamblen County for a Litter and Trash Collecting Grant for FY 2016-
2017 from the Tennessee Department of Transportation. 

 
2. That should said application be approved by the Tennessee Department of 

Transportation, then Bill Brittain of Hamblen County is authorized to execute 
contracts or other necessary documents, which may be required to signify 
acceptance of the Litter and Trash Collecting Grant by Hamblen County. 

 
Approved at the regular meeting held on the 19th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 
___________________________________   _________________________________ 
County Mayor     Commission Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________   Notary:______________________ 
County Clerk      Date:________________________ 

192 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



193 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



194 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County, Tennessee Bid Tabulation

Bid Name:  2016 - Inmate Bread Products Citizen Tribune Newspaper - Public Notice

Department:   Hamblen County Jail Citizen Tribune Newspaper (online) - Public Notice

Hamblen County Government Website

Finance Committee Review: 5/9/2016

Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016
 

Item Item Shipping Shipping Unit Vendor Price/ Total 
Number Description Size/Unit (if different) Item # unit Amount
Bread Products

1

Sandwich Bread, approximately 

20 slices per 24oz. loaf. Loaf 24oz / 20 slice  0.07$  1.49$      

2

Hamburger Buns, 4", 12 buns 

per package Pack 12 ct.  0.12$  1.49$      

3

Hot Dog Buns, 6", 12 buns per 

package Pack 12 ct.  0.12$  1.49$      

 Delivery  

Single Bid

Recommendaton of 
Lieutenant Hambrick and 
Kitchen Manager Andie 
Miller for AWARD:

Recommendaton of 
Purchasing for AWARD:

Lieutenant Hambrick and Jail Kitchen Manager Andie Miller suggest to 

continue using Flowers Baking company due to their quality product, service & 

delivery.

Flowers Baking Company.

Bid Advertisement:

Date Bids Opened:  04/28/2016: 3:00 p.m.

Flowers Baking Company

Twice per week

195 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County, Tennessee Bid Tabulation

Bid Name:  2016 - Inmate Dairy Products Bid Advertisement: Citizen Tribune Newspaper - Public Notice

Department:   Hamblen County Jail Citizen Tribune Newspaper (online) - Public Notice

Date Bids Opened:  04/28/2016: 3:30 p.m. Hamblen County Government Website

Finance Committee Review: 5/9/2016

Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016

 

VENDOR  VENDOR   

Prairie Farms Dairy Borden Dairy  

Item Description

Current 

Shipping 

Unit/Size

Vendor 

Item #

Price per 

Ounce

Total 

Amount

Vendor 

Item #

Price per 

Ounce

Total 

Amount $ Diff.

Avg. 

weekly 

ordere

d

Avg. 

Yearly 

ordere

d

Yearly 

Savings

Milk, 2%, Grade A, 

Vibamin A & D added, 

Gluten Free, Pasteurized. 1/2 Pint (8 oz) 13873 $0.0344 $0.2750 25350 $0.0354 $0.2090 $0.0660 1,200  62,400  $4,118.40

Orange Juice, from 

concentrate, Paper Carton, 

Pasteurized. 4 oz. (4 oz) 1977 $0.0363 $0.1450 25388 $0.0363 $0.1380 $0.0070 1,100  57,200  $400.40

Whole Buttermilk 1/2 Gallon (64 oz) 23356 $0.0289 $1.8500 6902 $0.0328 $1.7800 $0.0700 9         468       $32.76

Delivery Twice per week Twice per week $4,551.56

Prairie Farms Diary: 0 low items

Borden Diary: 3 low items

  
Recommendation of 

Lieutenant Hambrick and 

Kitchen Manager Andie 

Miller:

Recommendation of 

Purchasing:

Prairie Farms  -   We are happy with their service and delivery and their willingness to 

help us with shortages, etc.

If we stay with current supplier - negotiate lower pricing due to market price 

competition.

6/4/2014 kdr196 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County, Tennessee Bid Tabulation

Bid Name:  2016 - Inmate Food Products and Supplies  Citizen Tribune Newspaper - Public Notice

Department:   Hamblen County Jail    Citizen Tribune Newspaper (online)- Public Notice

Date Bids Opened:  04/28/2016: 3:15 p.m.   Hamblen County Government Website

Finance Committee Review: 5/9/2016   

Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

24/Cnt Good Roots Produce Cucumber Select Medium Large Fresh 24 Count Good Roots 17.14 24 CT MRKN/ CAITO FDS $14.38

5/Lbs Good Roots Produce Cucumber Select Us #1 Fresh 5 lb Good Roots 7.1 6 CT PL/ CAITO FDS $5.25

10/Lbs Good Roots Produce Tomato Cherry Bulk Fresh 10 lb Good Roots 21.13 11 LB AV MRKN/ RAY & MASC $21.48

5/Lbs Good Roots Produce Tomato Roma Fresh 5 lb Good Roots 5.69 25 LB/ 65 CT AV MRKN/ RAY & MASC $20.70

4/5 Lb Markon
Cabbage Diced Fine 1/8” with Carrots 

Fresh
4/5 lb Markon 17.75 4-5 LB RDY SET SRV/ MARKON$17.39

5/Lbs Packer Celery Stick Fresh 5 lb Packer 11.57 4-3 LB/ 318 CT AV RDY SET SRV/ MARKON$21.67

50/Lbs Packer Cabbage Green Jumbo Bag Fresh  50 lb Packer 20.22 45 LB/ 20 CT AV PL/ CAITO FDS $17.31

1/1Lb Packer Carrot Baby Peeled Fresh  1 lb Packer 1 12-2 LB MARKON $23.97

12/Cnt Packer Cauliflower Fresh 12 count Packer 19.24 12 CT MARKON $29.19

6/Cnt Good Roots Produce Celery Stalk 36 Size Fresh 6 count Good Roots 9.39 6 CT MARKON $17.47

1/6 Cnt Markon Lettuce Iceberg Clean and Trim Fresh 6 count Markon 5.61 24 CT MARKON $22.56

25/Lbs Markon Onion Red Medium Carton Fresh 25 lb Markon 21.27 25 LB MARKON $26.66

50/Lbs Packer Onion Yellow Jumbo #2 Bag Fresh 50 lb Packer 20.12 50 LB MARKON $21.08

50/Lbs Packer Onion Yellow Jumbo Bag Fresh 50 lb Packer 20.7 50 LB MARKON $23.46

5/Lbs Good Roots Produce Onion Yellow Medium US #1 Fresh 5 lb Good Roots 7.17 10 LB PL/ CAITO FDS $9.76

1/1Lb Packer Radish Red Fresh 1 lb Packer 1.84 14-1 LB/ 420CT AVPL/ CAITO FDS $13.75

MEAT

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

8/10Lb Iowa Beef Producers
Beef Ground Bulk 73/27 Fine Tube 

Refrigerated 
8/10 lb 

Iowa Beef 

Products
1.92  per lb. 6 PC-60 LB AV/CS PL/ CARGILL $1.55 Per lb. CWT

96/3 Oz Advance
Beef Ground Patty Shape 3 Ounce 

Chuckwagon Fully Cooked, Frozen
96/3oz

Advance Pierre 

95522
$48.44 #9522CN 96/3 oz Advance 41.59 64-3 OZ ADV-PIERRE $37.87

80/1.97 Advance
Beef Ground Patty Shape Breaded Country 

Fried Fully Cooked for Biscuit, Frozen
80/1.97oz Advance Pierre  $36.94 80/1.97 oz Advance 34.09

250-1.97 OZ ADV-PIERRE $107.83

2/5LB Prairie Creek
Beef Patty Shape Salisbury Fully Cooked 

Average 53/3 Ounce, Frozen
53/3oz Advance Pierre $25.67 #730 54/3 oz Prairie Creek 35.48 53-3 OZ ADV-PIERRE $25.71

40/4 Oz Travis Meat
Beef Ground Patty Shape 4-1 Lunch, 

Frozen
40/4oz Travis $30.27 40/4 oz Travis 31.99 15 LB/ 60-4 OZ ADV-PIERRE $29.73

15/Lbs Prairie Creek

Beef Ground Patty Shape 8-1 Average 

78/22 Round 100% Pure Ground Raw, 

Frozen

120/2oz Cloud $47.46 15 lb / 8-1 Prairie Creek 38.99
120-2 OZ KE/ CARGILL $38.11

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

2/Cnt Jennie-O
Bologna, Turkey Average 10Lb Deli 

Refrigerated
2/10 lb Carolina $33.80 1.69/lb 2/10 lb Jennie-o 31.32 3 PC-21 LB AV/CS Perdue $0.96/ LB CWT

15/Lbs Prairie Creek
Bacon Slice Slab 14-17 Bronze Double 

Smoked Frozen
1/15 lb Silver Source $43.64 15 lb Prairie Creek 41.99 15 LB/ 225 CT AV Kitchen Essentials $44.52

72/4 Oz Foster Farms

Corn Dog Chicken Low fat Whole Grain 

Breaded Frozen, Meets School Grain 

Requirements

72/4 oz Foster Farms $37.53 72/4 oz Foster Farms 37.9
72-4 OZ GFS $27.23

4/5LB Jennie-O
Frank Turkey 5” 10-1 Skinless Fully Cooked 

82% Fat Free Vacuum Pack Frozen
2/5 lb Perdue $15.69 4/5 lb Jennie-o 28.64

4-5 LB/ 200-1.6 OZ Kitchen Essentials $19.29

FRESH PRODUCE

MEAT, continued

Bid Advertisement:

Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

1of8
197 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

POULTRY

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

2/5Lb Proview Foods
Chicken Breast Filet Breaded Fully Cooked 

Average 4 Ounce Frozen
2/5 lb 4oz Tyson $36.17 2/5 lb Proview 32.07 40-4 OZ AdvancePierre $32.25

2/5Lb Tyson Foods
Chicken Breast Nuggets Breaded Battered 

Average 225/.71 Ounce Red Label Raw
225/.71 oz Tyson $19.15 2/5 lb Tyson 19.93

2-5 LB/ 250 CT AV-0.64 OZGFS $13.74

4/5Lb Gold Kist

Chicken Breast Patty Shape Breaded Fully 

Cooked 1.63 Ounce Homestyle Whole 

Grain Frozen, Meets School Grain 

Requirements

200/1.5 oz
Classics 

Advanced Pierre
$36.94 4 / 5 lb Gold Kist 36.74

30 LB/ 294-1.63 OZGold Kist $61.32

3/4Lb Silverbrook

Chicken Breast No Bone or Skin Single 

Lobe 4 Ounce with Ribmeat Raw 

Individually Frozen

24/4 oz West Creek $14.43 3/4 lb Silverbrook 28.9
3-5 LB/ 60-4 OZ GFS $45.14

2/9.5Lb Cobblestreet Market
Turkey Breast Deli Skinless Oven Roasted 

99% Fat Free Refrigerated
2/9 lb ave Silver Source $52.25 2/9.5 lb Cobblestreet 52.39 2-10 LB GFS $47.01

9/Lbs Jennie-O
Sausage Turkey Patty Shape 1.6 Ounce 

Raw Frozen
128/1.5 oz Butterball $31.60 9 lb Jennie-O 24.39 10 LB/ 106-1.5 OZ Perdue $23.68

SEAFOOD

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

6/66.5 Oz Hidden Bay
Tuna Chunk Light Skipjack in Water with 

Additives
6/66.5 oz Magellan $44.64 6/66.5 oz Hidden Bay 43.77 6-66.5 OZ Kitchen Essentials $55.00

1/66.5 Oz Hidden Bay
Tuna Chunk Light Skipjack in Water with 

Additives

Do not break 

case
1-66.5 oz Hidden Bay 7.51 6-66.5 OZ Kitchen Essentials $55.00

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

30/1 Lb Chef Mark Margarine Solid Print Refrigerated 30/1 lb West Creek $13.79 30/1 lb Chef Mark 17.2 30-1 LB GFS $20.40

4/5 Lb Cobblestreet Market
Cheese American Colored 160 Slice Easy 

Peel, .5 Ounce Refrigerated
4/5 lb Menue $33.13 4/5 lb Cobblestreet 39.55 4-5 LB/ 640-.5 OZ GFS $40.04

12/12Cnt Silverbrook
Egg Hard Cooked Peeled Pillow Pack 

Refrigerated
12/12 ct West Creek $41.08 12/12 ct. Silverbrook 27.96 4-2.5 LB/ 88 CT AVGFS $19.73

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

30/Doz Fair Meadow
Egg Shell On White Medium Grade Aa 

Loose Pack Refrigerated
x 30 doz Fair Meadow 17.39 360 CT GFS $20.36

48/4 Oz Upstate Farms
Yogurt Blueberry Non-Fat Gluten Free 

Refrigerated
48/4 oz Danon Asst $18.78 48 / 4 oz

Upstate 

Farms
14.33 48-4 OZ Yoplait Original $18.71

48/4 Oz Upstate Farms
Yogurt Raspberry Non-Fat Reduced Sugar 

Gluten Free Refrigerated
48/4 oz Danon Asst $18.78 48/ 4 oz

Upstate 

Farms
14.33 48-4 OZ Yoplait Trix $14.41

1/5Lb Fair Meadow Sour Cream Tub Bulk Refrigerated 4/5 lb Packer $22.04 1/5 lb Fair Meadow 6.58 4-5 LB GFS $29.31

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

4/3Lb Golden Value Okra Breaded S/Style Frozen 4/5 lb Frst Swt $21.26 4/3 lb Golden Value 17.48 6-2 LB Packer Label $11.78

216/2.2 Brickfire Bakery
Dough Biscuit Southern Homestyle Round 

Handi Split Frozen
216/2.2 oz Pillsbury $38.06 216/2.2 oz Brickfire 28.61 216-2.2 OZ GFS $37.27

24/3.2Oz Udi’s
Roll Hamburger 4” 3.2 Ounce Sliced Baked 

Individually Wrapped Gluten Free Frozen
24/3.2 oz UDI's $26.70 24/3.2 oz UDI's 24.9

10-12 CT/ 4" GFS $21.55

DAIRY/NON-DAIRY

DAIRY/NON-DAIRY, continued

FROZEN FOODS

2of8
198 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

18/8 Cnt Aunt Jemima
French Toast Original Thin 1.5 Ounce 

Frozen
18/8 ct

Mrs. 

Butterworth
$25.12 18/8 ct Aunt Jemima 31.12 144-1.5 OZ Echo Lake $20.53

12/12 Cnt Mrs Butterworth Pancake Original 1.2 Ounce Frozen 12/12 ct
Mrs. 

Butterworth
$15.12 12/12 ct

Mrs. 

Butterworth
15.84 144-1.2 OZ Echo Lake $11.72

18/8 Cnt Mrs Butterworth Waffle Jumbo 1.3 Ounce Square Frozen 18/8 ct
Mrs. 

Butterworth
$15.43 18/8 ct

Mrs. 

Butterworth
16.17 144-1.27 OZ Aunt Jemima $18.36

6/Cnt Wick’s Pies Inc.
Pie Pecan 9” Unsliced Baked Thaw & Serve 

Frozen
6/36 oz Heritage Oven $44.10 6 ct Wicks Pies 34.39 6-36 OZ/ 10" Wick's Pies $38.79

6/43 Oz Chef Pierre
Pie Pumpkin 10” Unsliced Baked Open 

Face Frozen
6/43 oz Heritage Oven $32.50 6 / 43 oz Chef Pierre 32.05 6-43 OZ/ 10" Chef Pierre $35.74

144/Cnt Brickfire Bakery
Donut Cake Variety Mini 1.25 Ounce 48 

Each Plain Cinnamon Sugar
240/1.25 oz

Sara Lee Mini 

Variety
$33.13 144 ct Brickfire 32.47 4-60 CT/ 1.25 OZ Sara Lee $50.99

20/Lbs Bountiful Harvest Onion Diced 3/8” Frozen 1/20 lb West Creek $20.31 20 lb Bountiful H. 17.85 6-4 LB GFS $22.69

20/Lbs Bountiful Harvest Pepper Green Diced 3/8” Frozen 6/2lb Frt Swt $12.84 20 lb Bountiful H. 21.84 12-2 LB GFS $26.02

6/5 Lb Spud Queen French Fry Crinkle Cut Line Flow Frozen 6/5 lb Packer $16.13 6/5 lb Bountiful H. 17.33 6-5 LB Kitchen Essentials $20.39

6/5 Lb Lamb Weston

French Fry Wedge 8 Cut Fancy Original 

Seasoning Fry or Oven Zero Grams Trans 

Fat Frozen

6/5 lb West Creek $28.83 6/5 lb Lamb Weston 33.84
6-5 LB GFS $23.23

6/3 Lb Lamb Weston
Potato Hashbrown Portnd Fancy 96/3 

Ounce Frozen
96/3 oz Lamb Supreme $20.82 6/3 lb Lamb Weston 19.86 6-3 LB GFS $16.52

96/4.56 The Max
Pizza Cheese 4X6 Whole Grain Frozen, 

Meets School Grain Requirements
96/4 joz

Pizza the MAX 

Cheese
$44.82 96/4.56 oz The MAX 43.13 96-4.6 OZ Tony's $38.47

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

4/1 Gal Katy’s Kitchen Dressing Ranch Homestyle Refrigerated 4/1 gal West Creek $32.59 4/1 gal Katy Kitchen 30.87 4-1 GAL Kitchen Essentials $25.50

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

25/Lbs Midstate Mills Biscuit Mix Formula Liter 1/25 lb Formula-L $20.46 25 lb Midstate Mills 22.44 25 LB Redi Mix $24.05

6/5Lb Hospitality Cake Mix White 2-Way 6/5 lb Cont. Mills $24.30 6/5 lb Hospitality 35 6-5 LB Redi Mix $23.24

8/16 Oz Krusteaz Pancake Mix Gluten Free 8/16 oz Krusteaz $27.08 8/16 oz Krusteaz 27.05 12-22 OZ Continental Mills $66.51

2/25Lb Gold Medal
Flour Hotel & Restaurant Wheat Self-

Rising Enriched Bleached Soft All-Purpose
1/25 lb Roma $6.65 2/25 lb Gold Medal 17.26

2-25 LB General Mills $15.83

24/16 Oz Katy’s Kitchen Baking Soda 24/1 lb Hospitality $14.20 24/1 lb Culinary Sec 15.59 12-2 LB Hospitality $15.16

25/Lbs Stiver’s Best Cornmeal White Self-Rising Mix 1/25 lb Stivers $11.49 25 lb Stivers 12.65 25 LB Weisenberger $11.73

25/Lbs Stiver’s Best Cornmeal Yellow Self-Rising Mix 1/25 lb Stivers $10.43 25 lb Stivers 12.1 25 LB Weisenberger $11.73

1/5Lb First Food Cocoa Baking Pure 10-12% Tub 1/5 lb  First Food $13.53 5 lb First Food 19.25 5 LB Hershey's $26.14

18/12 Oz JFG Coffee for Urn 18/12 oz JFG $71.99 18/12 oz JFG 77.78 24-8.5 OZ Luzianne $57.07

32/4 Oz Luzianne Tea Iced Plain with Filter 32/4 oz Luzianne $37.74 32 / 4 oz. Luzianne 36.95 32-4 OZ GFS $29.52

12/24 Oz Rejuv
Drink Grape Powder Mix with Vitamin C, 

Yield 24Gal
12/18 oz West Creek $20.69 12/24 ox Rejuv 17.86 12-22 OZ GFS $18.92

12/24 Oz Rejuv
Drink Lemonade Pink Powder Mix with 

Vitamin C, Yield 24Gal
12/18 oz West Creek $20.69 12/24 oz Rejuv 17.86 12-18 OZ Diamond Crystal $16.62

12/24 Oz Rejuv
Drink Orange Powder Mix with Vitamin C, 

Yield 24Gal
12/2 gal Twist $15.73 12/24 oz Rejuv 17.86 12-22 OZ GFS $18.92

12/24 Oz Rejuv
Drink Strawberry Powder Mix with 

Vitamin C, Yield 24Gal
12/18 oz West Creek $20.69 12/24 oz Rejuv 17.86 12-18 OZ Diamond Crystal $16.62

1/1Gal Katy’s Kitchen Juice Lemon 100% Plastic Bottle 1/1 Gal Ruby Kist $7.49 1 gal Katy Kitchen 8.95 12-32 FL OZ GFS $23.64

24/16.9 Propel Drink Berry Fitness Water 24/16.9 Propel $17.23 24/16.9 oz Propel 15.54 24-500 ML Propel Zero $14.08

REFRIGERATED FOODS

DRY GROCERY

3of8
199 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

24/16.9 Propel Drink Strawberry  Kiwi Fitness Water 24/16.9 Propel $17.23 24/16.9 oz Propel 15.54 24-500 ML Propel Zero $14.08

8/5Lb Quaker Oats Grits Quick White Enriched 8/5 lb Hospitality $28.99 8/5 lb Quaker 21.77 8-5 LB Quaker $19.42

12/42 Oz Hospitality Oatmeal Quick Rolled Enriched in Box 12/42 oz Hospitality $24.41 12/42 oz Hospitality 25.87 12-42 OZ Gilster-Mary Lee $25.84

200/Cnt Smuckers
Jam Assorted Sugar Free w/ Sucralose 3/8 

Ounce Grape, Blackberry, Strawberry
200/3oz Smuckers $13.23 200 ct Smuckers 13.5

200-0.38 OZ Smucker's $13.59

200/.50 

Oz
Poco Pac

Jelly Assorted Portion Control Pouch, 100 

Grape, 100 Apple
200/.5 oz West Creek $9.92 200 ct Poco Pac 9.16 200-10 GM GFS $8.64

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

6/#10 Katy’s Kitchen Jelly Grape 6/#10 West Creek $45.59 6/#10 Katy Kitchen 45.65 6-128 OZ GFS $44.88

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Ketchup 29% Extra Standard 6/#10 West Creek $19.97 6/#10 Bountiful H 20.62 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $22.29

500/Cnt Americana Mustard Packet 5.5G 500/5.5 oz Sauer $8.55 500 count Americana 5.73 500-5.5 GM GFS $8.31

4/1Gal Katy’s Kitchen Mustard Salad Yellow Prepared 4/1 Gal West Creek $14.12 4/1 gal Katy Kitchen 17.65 4-1 GAL Crown Collection $15.05

6/5Lb
Katy’s Kitchen/Culinary 

Secrets
Peanut Butter Creamy 6/5 Gal West Creek $42.57 6/5 lb Katy Kitchen 52.34 6-5 LB GFS $51.90

10/Lbs Keebler
Cookie Chocolate Chip Old Fashioned 

Average 324/Count
1/10 lb Nabisco $20.72 10 lb Keebler 23.24 10 LB/ 324 CT AV Keebler $27.17

10/Lbs Keebler
Cookie Oatmeal Old Fashioned Average 

324/Count
324 ct Heritage Oven $21.51 10 lb Keebler 9.99 10 LB/ 360 CT AV Nabisco $26.82

6/13.3 Oz Keebler Cookie Vanilla Wafer 6/13.3 oz Nabisco $11.92 6/13.3 oz Keebler 26.69 6-13.3 OZ/ 590 CT AVKeebler $9.91

30/Cnt Keebler
Cracker Graham Honey 5.75 Ounce Zero 

Grams Trans Fat Bulk
30/5.33 oz Keebler $28.95 30 count Keebler 20.51 6-32 OZ/ 1392 CT AVKeebler $29.06

8/Lbs Sunshine Bisquit Cracker Saltine Krispy Bulk 12/1 lb Premium $30.51 8 lb Sunshine 21.48 6-32 OZ Kellogg's $32.89

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Applesauce Unsweetened Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $29.78 6/ #10 Bountiful H 24.63 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $29.33

6/#10 Full Red Paste Tomato 6/ #10 West Creek $31.51 6/ #10 Full Red 31.99 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $34.17

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Sauce Tomato Fancy From Concentrate 6/ #10 West Creek $18.18 6/ #10 Bountiful H 18.82 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $19.71

6/#10 Bush Brothers & Co. Bean Chili Spiced in Chili Sauce 6/ #10 Bush $22.72 6/ #10 Bush Brothers 23.05 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $24.20

6/#10 Bush Brothers & Co. Bean Great Northern Fancy 6/ #10 Bush $21.29 6/ #10 Bush Brothers 21.12 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $23.20

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Bean Green Cut 4 Sieve Fancy 6/ #10 Packer $15.37 6/ #10 Bountiful H 21.62 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $25.74

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Bean Kidney Dark Red Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $28.71 6/ #10 Bountiful H 24.05 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $31.70

6/#10 Bush Brothers & Co. Bean Pinto Fancy Brine 6/ #10 Bush $21.19 6/ #10 Bush Brothers 20.99 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $21.80

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Corn Whole Kernel Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $22.32 6/ #10 Bountiful H 20.92 6-10 CAN SZ Kitchen Essentials $27.28

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Peas and Carrots Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $18.19 6/ #10 Bountiful H 27.09 6-10 CAN SZ Gfs $33.02

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Pea Sweet Mixed Sieve Extra Standard 6/ #10 West Creek $28.70 6/ #10 Bountiful H 25.2 6-10 CAN SZ Kitchen Essentials $29.23

6/#10 Allens Potato Diced Irish Fancy No Sulfites 6/ #10 West Creek $24.15 6/ #10 Allens 27.1 6-10 CAN SZ Gfs $27.03

6/#10 Allens Potato Sliced Irish Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $24.15 6/ #10 Allens 27.1 6-10 CAN SZ Gfs $26.84

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest
Potato Sweet Cut Light Syrup Fancy 40-60 

Count
6/ #10 West Creek $30.88 6/ #10 27.9 27.9 6-10 CAN SZ/ 300CT AVGFS $30.95

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest
Potato White Whole and Cut 60-80 Count 

Fancy
6/ #10 West Creek $25.92 6/ #10 Bountiful H 23.11 6-10 CAN SZ/ 420 CT AVGGfs $30.34

6/#10 Lakeside Foods Sauerkraut Shredded Fancy 6/ #10 West Creek $23.38 6/ #10 Lakeside 29.56 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $26.01

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest Tomato Diced ¾” In Juice Extra Standard 6/ #10 West Creek $17.76 6/ #10 Bountiful H 19.4 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $19.80

6/#10 Allens Turnip Green Chopped Low Sodium 6/ #10 Packer $22.31 6/ #10 Allens 25.36 6-10 CAN SZ Packer Label $20.11

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest
Vegetable For Stew Fancy 

Can/Potato/Cel/Pea/Onion
6/ #10 West Creek $25.24 6/ #10 Bountiful H 23.83 6-10 CAN SZ Gfs $29.44

DRY GROCERY, continued

DRY GROCERY, continued

4of8
200 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

25/Lbs Bountiful Harvest
Bean Great Northern Triple Cleaned Paper 

Bag Dry
1/20 lb Hayes $21.35 25 lb Bountiful H 22.72 6-5 LB GFS $27.50

50/Lbs San Pablo Bean Pinto Triple Cleaned Poly Bag Dry 1/50 lb Hayes $23.99 50 lb San Pablo 24.9 6-5 LB GFS $26.86

6/#10 Bountiful Harvest
Potato Mashed Complete Granules with 

Vitamin C 6/5.44Lb
6/#10 True Recipe $43.26 6/ #10 Bountiful H 39.23 6-5.31 LB GFS $45.94

2/10Lb A Zerega Pasta Pasta Farfalle Bowtie 2/ #10 Assoluti $22.01 2/10 ln Zecega 21.45 10 LB GFS $16.97

3/10Lb Villa Frizzoni Pasta Macaroni Elbow Heavy Wall 3/10 lb  Assoluti $26.85 3 / 10 lb Villa Frizzoni 24.98 4-5 LB GFS $21.64

6/12 Oz Heartland Pasta Pasta Penne Rigate Gluten Free 6/12 oz Heartland $14.29 6/12 oz Heartland 14.82 8-12 OZ Barilla $16.04

2/10Lb Villa Frizzoni Pasta Spaghetti 10” 2/10 lb Piancone $17.25 2/10 lb Villa Frizzoni 17.07 2-10 LB Kitchen Essentials $17.82

25/Lbs Uncle Bens
Rice Brown Whole Grain Long Parboiled, 

Meets School Grain Requirements
25 lb. Uncle Ben $25.05 25 lb Uncle Bens 27.29

25 LB GFS $12.10

50/Lbs Riceland Rice Long Grain 4% Broken 50 lb West Creek $17.25 50 lb Bountiful H 20.05 50 LB Packer Label $15.27

6/36 Oz Uncle Bens Rice Pilaf Original 6/36 oz Uncle Ben $25.75 6 /36 oz Uncle Bens 27.33 6-36 OZ GFS $26.49

6/36 Oz Uncle Bens Rice Spanish 6/36 oz Parway / Packer $30.27 6/36 oz Uncle Bens 40.44 6-36 OZ GFS $36.30

4/1 Gal Katy’s Kitchen
Pickle Dill Hamburger Slice 1/8” Straight 

Cut Average 600 Count Plastic
4/1 Gal West Creek $18.28 4/1 gal Katy Kitchen 21.89 4-1 GAL/ 2600 CT AVGFS $25.17

4/1 Gal Katy’s Kitchen Relish Pickle Dill Plastic 4/1 Gal West Creek $24.93 4/1 gal Katy Kitchen 25.59 4-1 GAL GFS $30.92

6/#10 Katy’s Kitchen Pudding Banana, Ready to Use 6/ #10 Silver Source $24.52 6/ #10 Katy Kitchen 29.1 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $37.16

6/#10 Katy’s Kitchen Pudding Butterscotch, Ready to Use 6/ #10 Silver Source $25.17 6/ #10 Katy Kitchen 27.21 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $37.09

6/#10 Katy’s Kitchen Pudding Chocolate, Ready to Use 6/ #10 Silver Source $24.41 6/ #10 Katy Kitchen 28.05 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $37.99

6/#10 Katy’s Kitchen Pudding Lemon, Ready to Use 6/ #10 Silver Source $29.29 6/ #10 Katy Kitchen 27.1 6-10 CAN SZ GFS $39.10

4/1 Gal Katy’s Kitchen Dressing Honey Mustard 4/1 Gal West Creek $39.62 4/1 gal Katy Kitchen 34.5 4-1 GAL GFS $33.80

2/1 Gal Culinary Secrets Dressing Italian Garden 2/1 Gal Roma $18.57 2/1 gal
Culinary 

Secret
18.35 4-1 GAL Kitchen Essentials $21.00

4/1 Gal Gold Medal Mayonnaise Heavy Duty 4/1 Gal Silver Source $18.44 4 /1 gal Gold Medal 22.82 4-1 GAL Kitchen Essentials $23.06

4/1 Gal Katy’s Kitchen Vinegar White Distilled 5% 4/1 Gal West Creek $9.21 4 / 1 gal Katy Kitchen 10.91 6-1 GAL Heinz $21.88

35/Lbs Smart Source
Oil Frying Liquid Soybean Clear Zero 

Grams Trans Fat
35 lbs Silver Source $18.25 35 lb Smart Source 19.88 35 LB Pantry Value $18.47

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

6/17 Oz Smart Source/Everlight
Food Release Water Soybean Cooking 

Spray Aerosol Zero Grams Trans Fat
6/17 oz Roma $18.77 6/12 oz Smart Choice 15.1 6-17 OZ Kitchen Essentials $20.26

35/Lbs Master Chef Oil Pan and Griddle 6/1 Gal West Creek $33.15 35 lb Master Chef 29.36 35 LB GFS $24.88

12/1 Lb Jet Puff Marshmallow White Mini 12/1 lb Hospitality $13.67 12 /1 lb Jet Puff 24.99 12-1 LB GFS $20.27

8/16 Oz Lay’s Chip Potato Regular Wavy 8/16 oz Lays $18.20 8/16 oz Lay's 18.13 8-16 OZ Ruffles $18.24

104/1 Oz Cheetos
Snack Cheese Crunchy Zero Grams Trans 

Fat
104/1.12 oz Cheetos $29.62 104/ 1oz Cheeto's 31.48 104-1 OZ Cheetos $28.01

6/90 Cnt La Banderita Tortilla Corn Yellow 6” Pressed Enchilada 6/4.88 lb LaBanderita $17.19 6/90 ct La Bonderita 17.09 6-120 CT/ 6" Gran Sazon $21.65

8/16 Oz Katy’s Kitchen Gravy Mix Brown Bag 6/16 oz West Creek $19.30 8/16 oz Katy Kitchen 25.84 12-15 OZ GFS $29.64

8/22.6 Oz Trio Gravy Mix Chicken 8/22 oz. Trio $33.93 8/22.6 oz Trio 36.78 12-15 OZ GFS $26.68

6/24 Oz Conestoga Gravy Mix Pepper 6/24 oz. Conestoga $16.86 6/24 oz Conestoga 17.44 12-24 OZ GFS $27.64

4/1 Gal Culinary Secrets Sauce Barbecue Sweet and Spicy 4/1 Gal West Creek $29.16 4/1 gal
Culinary 

Secret
36.46 4-1 GAL GFS $30.10

6/#10 Villa Frizzoni Sauce Marinara Chunky Gluten Free 6/10 gal Piancone $26.83 6 / #10 Villa Frizzoni 26.14 6-10 CAN SZ Redpack $27.68

24/7.25 Campbells
Soup Chicken Noodle Ready to Use Easy 

Open Can
24 / 7.25 oz. Campbells $19.15 24 /7.25 oz Campbells 20.06 24-7.25 OZ Campbell's $17.54

24/7.25 Campbells Soup Tomato Ready to Use Easy Open Can 24/7.25 oz Campbells $19.40 24 /7.25 oz Campbells 20.33 24-7.25 OZ Campbell's $17.79

24/7.25 Campbells
Soup Vegetable Ready to Use Easy Open 

Can
24/7.25 0z Campbells $20.43 24 /7.25 oz Campbells 20.86 24-7.25 OZ Campbell's $18.29

DRY GROCERY, continued

5of8
201 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

1/1 Lb Culinary Secrets
Base Chicken Gourmet Paste No MSG 

Added
12/1 lb Chefsown $21.12 1/1 lb

Culinary 

Secret
6.19 6-1 LB Gordon Signature $30.34

24/8 Oz Ensure
Supplement Drink Ensure Can Chocolate 

Original Ready to Serve
24/8 oz Ensure $40.99 24/ 8 oz Ensure 27.65 27-8 FL OZ Nestle Nutrition $32.52

16/Oz Culinary Secrets Extract Vanilla Pure 1 Qt Mcormick $5.44 16 oz
Culinary 

Secret
14.81 1 PINT GFS $16.75

16 Oz Culinary Secrets Celery Seed Whole 1 Lb Mcormick $4.43 16 oz
Culinary 

Secret
7.18 16 OZ Trade East $8.88

15 Oz Traders Choice Cinnamon Ground 1/18 oz Spice Classic $4.21 15 oz
Traders 

Choice
4.93 15 OZ Trade East $8.04

19 Oz Traders Choice Garlic Powder 1 Lb Spice Classic $4.23 19 oz
Traders 

Choice
7.31 21 OZ Trade East $11.76

20 Oz Culinary Secrets Onion Powder 1/20 oz Spice Classic $4.52 20 oz
Culinary 

Secret
5.81 19 OZ Trade East $7.03

11 Oz Culinary Secrets Parsley Flakes 1/10 oz McCormick $12.76 11 oz
Culinary 

Secret
11.54 11 OZ Trade East $13.88

1/38 Oz Traders Choice Salt Garlic 1/41.25 oz McCormick $9.32 38 oz
Traders 

Choice
6.69 37 OZ Trade East $7.99

5/Lbs Gordo’s Spice Black Pepper 1/5 lbs Goroos $37.65 5 lb Gordo's 41.36 5 LB Trade East $65.05

5.75/Lbs Traders Choice Spice Chili Powder 1/5 lbs CASA $11.57 5.75 lb
Traders 

Choice
27.08 5.5 LB Trade East $41.03

5/Lbs Gordo’s Spice Chili Powder Light 1/5 lbs CASA $11.57 5 lb Gordo's 13.05 16 OZ Trade East $8.53

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

6/Oz Culinary Secrets Thyme Leaves Whole 1/6 oz McCormicks $7.85 6 oz
Culinary 

Secrets
6.52 6 OZ Trade East $8.25

1/5 Lb Lawry’s Seasoning Salt Seasoning No MSG Added 1/5 lb Lawrys $15.40 5 lb Lawrys 16.26 5 LB Trade East $13.40

6/15 Oz Lawry’s Seasoning Seasoning Sloppy Joe Mix 4/107 oz Hunts $22.88 6/15 oz Lawrys 24.61    no bid

24/26 Oz Katy’s Kitchen Salt Table Iodized 24/26 oz West Creek $14.32 24/26 oz Katy Kitchen 14.75 24-26 OZ Packer Label $14.05

24/1 Lb Domino Sugar Brown Dark 12/2 lb Dixie Crystal $23.88 24/ 1 lb Domino 24.18 24-1 LB Packer Label $26.95

50/Lbs Dixie Crystal
Sugar Granulated Cane Extra Fine 

Granulated White
1/50 lb Packer $21.11 50 lbs Dixie Crystal 23.25 50 LB GFS $27.18

100/1.5G Americana Syrup Packets 1.5G 100/1 Americana $4.78 100 /1.5 G Americana 6.8 100-1.5 OZ Madeira Farms $16.36

12/1.2 Oz Better Balance 
Cereal Apple Cinnamon Gluten Free, 

Single Serve
96/1 oz General Mills $36.96 12 / 1.2 oz

Better 

Balance
40.56 96-1 OZ Abundant Life Foods $28.50

6/12 Oz Abundant Life Foods Biscuit Mix Gluten Free 1/25 lb
Cheerios / Bobs 

Red
$45.04 6/ 12 oz Abundant Life 46.27 10.5 LB Abundant Life Foods $61.21

Sandwich Bread, approximately 20 slices 

per loaf.
  

$49.79 49.59 $26.01

Types should include: Gluten Free / Multi-

Grain

20 slices per 

loaf

12/32 Oz Lil’ Dutch Maid Duplex Crème Cookie 12/32 oz Murrays $20.15 12 / 32 oz Lil Dutch 23.57 no bid

   

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

4/1 Gal Propower Detergent Pot and Pan Lotion Blue 4/1 Gal Silver Source $18.20 4/1 Gal Propower 47.16 4-1 GAL Array $38.98

1/100 Foodhandler, Inc.
Apron 24”x42” White Regular Weight – 

Dispenser Box
100 ct First Mark $13.59 1/100

Foodhandler, 

Inc.
8.46 100 CT Foodhandler $8.79

10/100 Foodhandler, Inc.
Glove Poly Disposable Medium Embossed 

Textra
4/500 ct Silver Source $12.85 10/100

Foodhandler, 

Inc.
20.71 10-100 CT FoodHandler Textra $23.20

500/Cnt Propak
Bag Plastic Poly Food Low Density/Linear 

Low 7x8 2MM Quart Zipseal Clear
500 ct First Mark $19.04 500/Cnt Propak 19.24

500-1 QT GFS $18.08

NON-FOODS

DRY GROCERY, continued

Loaf, appx 

20 slices 

per loaf

Udis 12-22 OZ GFS6 loaves UDI's
6/33oz 20 

Slice
UDI's

6of8
202 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

2000/Cnt Foodhandler, Inc.
Bag Plastic Polyethylene 6.5x7 Saddle 

Clear
10/100 Hand Gard $23.94 2000/Cnt

Foodhandler, 

Inc.
16.26 2000 CT Foodhandler $23.18

20/25 Cnt Dart Container Corp
Cup Foam 20 Ounce Tall White 16 Series 

Lid
20/25 ct First Mark $19.33 20/25 Cnt

Dart 

Container 

Corp

21.84
20-25 CT/ 20 OZ Dart $21.74

1/Cnt Propak Film Plastic 18x2000 Roll Foodservice 18 x2 ,000 Silver Source $15.96 1/ Roll Propak 37.36 1-2000' RL GFS $16.26

1/Cnt Propak
Foil Aluminum Standard Duty 18x1000’ 

Roll
18 x 1,000 First Mark $47.32 1/Roll Propak x 1-1000' RL Kitchen Essentials $20.65

1/50 Cnt Royal Paper Products
Filter Cone Paper 10” Grease For 

Shortening
50 ct Royal $5.69 1/50 Cnt

Royal Paper 

Products
8.23 10-50 CT/ 10" Cellucap $73.88

1000/Cnt Max Packaging
Spoon Plastic Polypropylene Medium 

Weight Beige
1,000 ct. First Mark $13.19  1000/Cnt

Max 

Packaging
9.35  1000 CT Kitchen Essentials $6.88  

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

4/125 Cnt Genpak Plate Foam 10.25” Laminated Beige Elite 4/125 ct Gen Pack $27.46 4/125 Cnt Genpak 34.96 4-135 CT/ 10.25" GFS $25.71

40/Cnt Propak
Towel Cloth Foodservice Deluxe Quarter 

Fold 12x21 Antimicrobial Blue
1/100 ct ATL Mills $55.51 40/Cnt Propak 26.52 6-40 CT Array $23.54

40/Cnt Royal Paper Products Pad Scrub Medium Duty 3.5x5 Green 20ct First Mark $4.95 40/Cnt
Royal Paper 

Products
11.07 6-10 CT Array $12.75

12/15 Cnt S.O.S. Pad Soap SOS 12/10 ct Royal $30.74 12/15 Cnt S.O.S. 34.79 12-15 CT S.O.S $33.73

1/Cnt Rubbermaid Lid Waste Can Brute 32 Gallon Gray 1/Cnt Proware 16.82 1-32 GAL Rubbermaid $31.61

1/Cnt Rubbermaid Waste Can Brute 32 Gallon Gray 1/Cnt Proware 50.05 1 CT Rubbermaid $10.69

1/Cnt Swiss Army
Glove Spectra Goldenrod Cut Resistant 

Medium Size 8
1/Cnt Swiss Army 20.86 1 CT Forschner $14.35

1/Pair Proware
Oven Mitt Cotton 17” 450 Degrees Beige 

Non Stick
1 pair Best Val $6.00 1/Pair Proware 7.53 2-17" Kitchen Essentials $6.45

   

Size Current Brand Description Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note Packaging Brand Cost Note

1/Cnt Non Food Packer Cup Measuring Stainless Steel Set 4 Sizes 1/Cnt Cambro 5.79 1 CT Allegacy $4.84

1/Cnt Winco Divider Dough 5 Wheel Adjustable 1/Cnt Winco 14.79 1 CT Winco $10.05

1/Cnt Non Food Packer Rolling Pin 18” Hardwood 1/Cnt Packer 12.74 No Bid

1/Cnt Cambro Manufacturing
Cup Measuring Plastic Polycarbonate 1Qt 

Camwear Clear
1/Cnt Cambro 6.24 1-32 OZ Cambro $6.60

1/Cnt Cambro Manufacturing
Cup Measuring Plastic Polycarbonate 2Qt 

Camwear Clear
1/Cnt Cambro 8.86 1-64 OZ Cambro $9.45

1/Cnt Polar Plastic
Cup Measuring Stainless Steel 16 Ounce 

Heavy Duty Graduated With Handle
1/Cnt Polar 22.27

1 CT Cambro $2.33

1/Cnt Cambro Manufacturing Scoop Carb 64 Ounce Clear Camwear 1/Cnt Cambro 8.22 1-64 OZ Cambro $6.84

1/Cnt Winco Spatula 14” Flat Plastic 1/Cnt Winco 0.98 1-13.5" Vollrath $2.39

      

Comments:

NON-FOODS, continued

EQUIPMENT/SMALLWARES

Delivery: Twice Week Minimum

Not all items were bidded.  Noted Cost 

escalations by force Majeure Events only. 

(52 items low bid)

Produce, Eggs & Ground Beef will be bid 

weekly based on market Price.  (48 items 

low bid)

$500 Minimum delivery Requirement   Produce, 

Eggs & Fresh Meat items will be bid weekly based 

on market Price.  *Additional items were quoted.  

(89 items low bid)

Twice Week Minimum Twice Week Minimum

7of8
203 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016    
  

FRESH PRODUCE Reinhart Food Services Gordon Food ServicesPerformance Food Group

Recommendation of Lieutenant Hambrick and Kitchen Manager 

Andie Miller:

Recommendation of Purchasing:

Gordon Food Service -      (A.)  Prices appear to be cheaper and the box counts are done by "pieces" instead of weight.  Sometimes there are 

less pieces in a box even though the weight is the same.              (B.) They offer a "specialty" line of food for our special diet inmates (example 

would be gluten free diet ordered by a doctor).

Gordon Food Service

8of8
204 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County, Tennessee Bid Tabulation

Bid Name:  2016 -New Commercial Grade Dishwasher for Detention Facility Bid Advertisement: Citizen Tribune Newspaper - Public Notice

Department:   Hamblen County Jail Citizen Tribune Newspaper (online) - Public Notice

Date Bids Opened:  04/28/2016: 2:00 p.m. Hamblen County Government Website

Finance Committee Review: 5/9/2016

Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016

Item Detail   Strategic Equipment   Mobile Fixture  Samtell & Son, Inc.

Dishwasher Door Type $16,902.90 $16,210.90 $15,937.02

Brand Hobart AM15T+Buildup Hobart AMI5T Hobard AM15T + Buildup

Installation $2,047.50 $1,984.13 $3,250.00

Soiled Dish Table $1,446.12 $1,777.97 $1,796.69

Clean Dish Table $809.46 $807.24 $771.55

Brand Titan 7XDT-L-14/5CDT-R-14 Advance Tabco DTS-530-84L Advance Tabco DTS-530-8

Maintenance Agreement $1,218.00 $400.00 $0.00

Delivery Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Delivery Time 15 business days 21  days 45 days

Total Cost less Annual 

Maintenance Agreement $21,205.98 $20,784.24 $21,755.26

Exceptions taken? No No No

Warranty 18 Months 18 months 18 Months

Notes

Sent explanation of Maintenance 

Agreement Plans.

Maintenance Location and 

response time to Service call

Hobart, Knoxville TN - 4 hours - 

during normal business hours. Knoxville TN - 48 hours or less

 Starr Equipment , Knoxville TN  

865-523-8410    / 48 hrs. or less
 Recommendation of 

Maintenance Manager Terry 

Lawson and Lieutenant 

Hambrick for Award:  
 

Recommendation of 

Purchasingfor Award:  

Vendors Bidding

Strategic Equipment - (A.) Delivery Time.  (B.) Their ability to be on site if / when there is a service issue.

Strategic Equipment - (A.) Delivery Time.  (B.) Their ability to be on site if / when there is a service issue.
205 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Hamblen County, Tennessee Bid Tabulation

Bid Advertisement: Citizen Tribune Newspaper - Public Notice
Bid Name:  2016 -New non-refurbished Computers Citizen Tribune Newspaper (online) - Public Notice

Department:   IT for County Offices Hamblen County Government Website

Date Bids Opened:  04/28/2016: 2:30 p.m.

Finance Committee Review: 5/9/2016

Co. Commission Review: 5/19/2016

STANDARD USER POWER USER MONITOR Does Bid Meet

Vendor Make Model Cost Make Model Cost Make Model Cost Requirements?

1

Unistar - Sparco 

Computers, Inc Dell Optiplex 3040 629.17$      Dell Optiplex 3040 766.92$      Dell E2316H, 23" Opt. 1 132.87$    Yes  

P2314H, 23" Opt. 2 200.57$    
 

2 BGC Systems Dell Optiplex 3040 642.99$      Dell Optiplex 3040 796.99$      Dell E2316H, 23" Opt. 1 149.99$    Yes  

    P2314H, 23" Opt. 2 239.99$      

3 CDW-G Levono

ThinkCentre 

M700 10GR - 

Core 13 6100 567.95$      Levono

ThinkCentre 

M700 10GR - 

Core 13 6400 799.21$      Levono E2316H, 23" Opt. 1 164.48$    

   P2314H, 23" Opt. 2 174.59$    Yes Not Dell Brand

4

SHI International 

Corp. Dell

Optiplex 3040 

XCTO Model: 

MT CORE i3-

6100 615.00$      Dell

Optiplex 3040 

XCTO Model: 

MT CORE i5-

6100100 750.00$      Dell E2316H, 23" Opt. 1 150.00$    

   P2314H, 23" Opt. 2 185.00$    Yes  

Recommendation 

of IT Manager for 

Award:

Recommendation 

of Purchasing for 

Award:

Notes:

Based on the bids received, my recommendation is to award the bid to SHI International.  Though CDW-G’s price on the Standard 

PC is lower, the price on the Power PC is significantly higher, and the price of monitor 1 is higher.  Additionally, we have spent a 

lot of time standardizing our PC purchasing, which allows me to have on hand spare parts for repairs without investing in 

perhaps unneeded inventory, as well as great familiarity with the models we have in use.  Though the bid currently under 

consideration represents a change in PC model, it is only a newer model of the same family.  This is akin to a newer model of the 

same car.  I do not feel it is a good idea to switch brands at this time.

SHI International.

206 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



207 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



208 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



209 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



210 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



211 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

Real Estate Consulting Agreement 

(Revised May 19, 2016) 

 

 

THIS REAL ESTATE CONSULTING AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made 

this 1st day of May, 2016, by and between Hamblen County, Tennessee (the “County”) and 

Lebel Commercial Realty (the “Consultant”). 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

a. The County desires to retain the Consultant to provide certain real estate consulting 

services, and is of the opinion that Consultant has the necessary qualifications, 

experience, and abilities to provide such services to the County. 

 

b. The Consultant desires to provide certain real estate consulting services to the 

County in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and obligations set forth in 

this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, 

County and Consultant agree as follows: 

 

Services Provided 

 

1. The County hereby agrees to retain the Consultant to provide the County with real 

estate consulting services (hereinafter “Services”) related to a) the search for 

property for needs that may arise; b) the negotiation for the purchase and/or lease of 

identified property; and c) assistance with the process of closing the purchase and/or 

lease of identified property. The Consultant shall provide such real estate consulting 

services as reasonably requested by the County during the term of this Agreement, 

provided that nothing here within shall require the Consultant to devote a minimum 

number of hours per week to the performance of services herein.     

 

2. Services will also include any other tasks that the County and the Consultant both 

mutual agree on. 

 

Terms of Agreement 

 

3. The term of this agreement will begin on the date of this Agreement and will remain 

in full force and effect until April 30, 2018.   

 

4. Services shall be performed at the request of the County Mayor and/or the 

Chairman of the County Commission.  A scope of work agreement must be signed by 

the County Mayor and the Consultant before billable hours can begin.  

 

5. The Consultant shall provide a certificate of insurance which shall insure County 

against any errors or omissions of Consultant which might result in a claim or 

claims against County due to any act or failure to act of Consultant in connection 

with services provided hereunder.  Consultant’s production of a certificate of such 

212 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



insurance in an amount not less than one million ($1,000,000) shall be a 

precondition of Consultant’s providing services hereunder. 

 

 

6. The County acknowledges and takes full responsibility and maintains control of all 

conclusions and decisions made as a result of the services provided by the 

Consultant.  The County acknowledges that the Consultant cannot control future 

events, and therefore, cannot be responsible for long-term outcomes of budget or 

financial strategies. 

 

7. This Agreement shall be for a time period specified by and agreed to by both parties.  

Cancellation of the Agreement requires written notification by the requesting party 

not less than 30 days in advance of cancellation unless it is determined by the 

County or the Consultant that a direct or indirect conflict of interest exists.  If so, 

this Agreement will be terminated immediately without prejudice. 

 

8. Under certain circumstances, brokers can have a conflict in the representation of 

two parties.  If a professional conflict of interest arises involving lead broker Paul 

LeBel, LeBel Commercial Realty will assign broker Will Sliger to represent the 

County. 

 

9. County acknowledges that the Consultant is an independent contractor and is NOT 

considered an employee of the County.  Consultant acknowledges that it is an 

independent contractor and has no expectations to be treated as an employee. 

 

10. Hamblen County’s Request for Qualifications/Proposals for Real Estate Agent 

Services and LeBel Commercial Realty’s response are part of this consulting 

agreement. 

 

  

Performance 

 

11. Both parties agree to do everything necessary to ensure that the terms of this 

Agreement take effect. 

 

Compensation 

 

12. For the services rendered by the Consultant, the Consultant will be compensated on 

a case by case basis depending on the scope of work.   The Consultant may be paid a 

commission fee by the Seller/Landlord if a property transaction takes place.  If the 

County is responsible for paying the fee, it may be a percent of the transaction 

amount or an hourly rate depending on the scope of work agreed upon by the 

Consultant and the County Mayor before work begins. The percentage fee, to be 

divided among the realtors involved, will be 7% for transactions below $300,000 and 

5% for transactions at or above $300,000.  The hourly fee is $130 per hour.  The 

hourly rate will be used for consulting duties that do not involve property 

transactions, such as negotiating lease agreements.   For work compensated by the 

hourly rate, the Consultant shall submit an invoice for payment on a monthly basis 

that will be paid by the fifteenth of the subsequent month. 

213 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly affixed their signatures on this _____ day 

of ____________, 2016. 

 

 

 

HAMBLEN COUNTY     CONSULTANT 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________________ 

Authorized Representative     Authorized Representative 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________________ 

Title        Title 

214 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



April 2016 Cost of Building SW Plumbing Mech. Gas

Permit Date Applicant Type Address Construction Permit Permit Permit Permit Permit Total Tax Map Group Parcel

14-461 4/1/16 Anglers for Christ Bath House 3068 Springvale Road 37813 $0.00 $216.00 $95.00 $311.00 043 095.02

14-462 4/4/16 Talley DWMH 5845 Fall Creek Road 37860 $60,000.00 $350.00 $350.00 011 054.01

14-463 4/4/16 Neon Service Co. Sign 2258 Springvale Road 37813 $12,000.00 $110.77 $110.77 051 029.00

14-464 4/4/16 Mullins garage 2897 Scenic Lake Circle 37814 $4,500.00 $180.00 $180.00 011I B 020.00

14-465 4/5/16 Compton addition 4941 Old Kentucky Road 37814 $60,000.00 $850.00 $60.00 $15.00 $925.00 018 078.01

14-466 4/5/16 Williams enclosing porch 1531 Boardwalk Circle 37814 $5,000.00 $72.00 $72.00 018J B 068.00

14-467 4/6/16 Porter garage 3810 Nelson School Road 37813 $70,000.00 $585.00 $585.00 055 026.00

14-468 4/8/16 Holtman house (3101 sq ft) 3039 Lee Ridge Road 37814 $300,000.00 $1,832.05 $100.00 $95.00 $20.00 $2,047.05 031D A 004.00

14-469 4/8/16 Hickle house (2500 sq ft) 1509 Beacon Road 37877 $300,000.00 $1,600.00 $100.00 $105.00 $20.00 $1,825.00 053 033.00

14-470 4/6/16 Joyner garage 4555 Cooper Ridge Road 37814 $19,400.00 $300.00 $300.00 018A A 012.00

14-471 4/7/16 Webb addition 8276 Grove Street 37891 $10,000.00 $185.00 $185.00 013 034.00

14-472 4/7/16 Frost DWMH 1543 Allen Road 37877 $61,000.00 $350.00 $350.00 047 034.07

14-473 4/1/16 Ball house (1664 sq ft) 1042 Elijah Marting Road 37891 $130,000.00 $915.20 $100.00 $85.00 $15.00 $1,115.20 020 pt of 034.08

14-474 4/11/16 Gosnell DWMH 1173 Arden Lane 37814 $80,000.00 $350.00 $350.00 042 087.00

14-475 4/11/16 Rickard screened porch 1771 Mullins Road 37860 $5,000.00 $40.00 $40.00 012B C 009.00

14-476 4/13/16 Slater porch 1346 Collinson Ford Road 37814 $2,500.00 $25.00 $25.00 047 083.00

14-477 4/12/16 Lafollette DWMH 1289 Gentry Road 37877 $75,000.00 $350.00 $350.00 047 pt of 005.04

14-478 4/13/16 Oaks house (1350 sq ft) 4520 Yorkshire Lane 37813 $120,000.00 $750.00 $100.00 $65.00 $15.00 $930.00 026K G 018.00

14-479 4/13/16 Snowden garage 3363 Lake Drive 37814 $10,000.00 $210.00 $210.00 017F A 007.00

14-480 4/13/16 Minor storage building 1191 Arden Lane 37814 $500.00 $48.00 $48.00 042 088.00

14-481 4/14/16 McLaughlin carport/storage bldg 2410 Joe Stephens Road 37814 $1,000.00 $85.00 $85.00 032 pt of 060.07

14-482 4/14/16 Cope carport/storage bldg 5172 Spencer Hale Road 37813 $1,000.00 $85.00 $85.00 057 140.11

14-483 4/18/16 Cox house (1488 sq ft) 6729 Rex Drive 37877 $130,000.00 $865.00 $100.00 $70.00 $15.00 $1,050.00

14-484 4/15/16 Willis storage building 5125 Copper Ridge Road 37814 $4,000.00 $216.00 $216.00 011I F 065.00

14-485 4/13/16 Mahan garage 4351 Barding Drive 37860 $8,000.00 $192.00 $192.00 044 044.00

14-486 4/18/16 Dodson modular Copper Ridge Road 37814 $146,000.00 $510.00 $100.00 $10.00 $620.00 018 pt of 001.01

14-487 4/20/16 Haun storage building 1971 Silver City Road 37860 $1,500.00 $75.00 $75.00 036 030.03

14-488 4/25/16 Rosenbalm house (1600 sq ft) 5636 Brights Pike 37814 $140,000.00 $1,025.00 $100.00 $65.00 $15.00 $1,205.00 011J A 004.00

14-489 4/26/16 Stepp SWMH 3921 McClister Road 37813 $6,000.00 $100.00 $100.00 051 067.03

14-490 4/26/16 Greenlee house (1152 sq ft) 2148 Kidwell Ridge Road 37814 $90,000.00 $633.60 $100.00 $55.00 $15.00 $803.60 032 048.03

14-491 4/26/16 Cooper house (1928 sq ft) 3639 Tomahawk Hill 37814 $220,000.00 $1,210.40 $100.00 $110.00 $25.00 $30.00 $1,475.40 009O A 011.01

14-492 4/28/16 Bass SWMH 5668 Amy Drive 37877 $35,500.00 $100.00 $100.00 055H D 004.00

14-493 4/29/16 Chapman house (1634 sq ft) 1201 Hazelwood Circle 37814 $130,000.00 $1,102.00 $100.00 $75.00 $15.00 $1,292.00 039M A 054.00

14-494 4/29/16 Brown house (1969 sq ft) 1567 Cleleste Avenue 37814 $160,000.00 $1,224.95 $100.00 $70.00 $15.00 $20.00 $1,429.95 033H B 014.01

Total 33 Total: $2,397,900.00 $16,742.97 $1,100.00 $960.00 $185.00 $50.00 $19,037.97

Running Total 164 $10,839,919.00 $75,695.29 $3,800.00 $3,500.00 $735.00 $175.00 $83,905.29

ETHRA Monthly YTD

Total No. Amount Total HOMES 0 0

Copies and Miscellaneous $7.00 $0.00 April

Re-Zoning Request $75.00 $0.00 Grand 

Variance Request 1 $50.00 $50.00 Total: $19,237.97

Plat Approval 1 $150.00 $150.00

3 lots or more Land Disturbance/Development $100.00 $0.00 2014-2015

Use on Review $50.00 $0.00  Running

Refunds $0.00

Total Collected $200.00 Total: $90,406.29

Running Total Collected $6,501.00215 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



216 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



217 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



218 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



219 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



220 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



221 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



222 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



223 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



224 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



225 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



226 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



227 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



228 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



229 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



230 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



231 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



232 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



233 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



234 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



235 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



236 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



COMMERCIAL LEASE FOR COUNTY CLERK SATELLITE OFFICE 
 
 

THIS COMMERCIAL LEASE is hereby made and entered into this 1st day of June, 2016 by and between 
Mark L. Sawyer (“Landlord”) and Hamblen County, a political subdivision of the State of Tennessee 
(“Tenant”). 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
For and in consideration of the rental, undertakings and mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, 
Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, subject to the terms and 
conditions hereafter expressed, certain office space more particularly described and located within the 
Landlord’s real estate described as: 
 
Street Address:  2415 N Davy Crockett Parkway, Morristown, Tennessee, 37814 
 
The “Leased Premises” shall be three thousand three hundred sixty (3,360) one thousand five hundred  
(1,500) square feet interior office suites located in the at the eastern end of the building formerly 
housing Epes Transport Systems.  Further included in the leased premises is the use of the parking area 
surrounding the landlord’s building. 
 
The covenants and conditions of this Lease are as follows: 
 

1. Term:  This Lease shall commence on June 1, 2016 and end on May 31, 2017 (the “Initial Term”).  
Tenant shall have the option to renew the Lease for an additional one (1) year term (the 
“Renewal Term”) by providing Landlord with written notice of its desire to exercise this option 
as least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the Initial Term. 

 
Landlord shall have the right within the last sixty (60) days of the Initial Term or within the last 
sixty (60) days of the Renewal Term to show the Leased Premises to prospective tenants. 

 
2. Rent:  Landlord agrees to charge NO ($0) $1,100 per month rent for the Leased Premises during 

the Initial Term.  Should the Tenant exercise the option to renew the Lease for an additional one 
(1) year, the rent amount will be $1,850 $750 per month beginning with the first day of June 
2017 for a total of twelve (12) months.  
 
The Tenant agrees to pay to the Landlord during the Initial Term an amount equal to the 2016 
Hamblen County and City of Morristown property taxes for the office space and one-half acre 
of land based on the assessed value on file in the Hamblen County Assessor of Property’s office.  
During the renewal period, the amount to be paid to the Landlord will be an amount equal to 
the 2017 property taxes for the City of Morristown and Hamblen County.  The Tenant is exempt 
from personal property taxes.   

 
3. Build Out Provisions:  Tenant will contract for and pay for the renovation of the office space.  

The renovation will include installing two interior walls (with doors), a removal of one wall, 
partial ceiling replacement, new flooring and paint, electrical outlets, replacement door and two 
(2) overhead lights. 

 

237 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



4.  Alterations and Improvements:  All additions and improvements made in and upon the Leased 
Premises, either by Tenant or Landlord, shall be the Landlord’s sole property or shall remain 
upon the Leased Premises at the termination of this Lease, without compensation to the Tenant. 
 

5. Maintenance and Repair:  Tenant agrees to maintain the Leased Premises in the same general 
condition as when received, ordinary wear and tear and damage by the elements excepted.  
Tenant also agrees to keep the Leased Premises free from trash, garbage and other waste. 

 
Tenant agrees to pay Landlord, upon demand, for any and all loss or damage to the Leased 
Premises caused by Tenant’s misuse, waste, or neglect or caused by any of Tenant’s employees, 
agents, clients, visitors or anyone else invited by or under the control of Tenant again, normal 
wear and tear excepted. 
 
Tenant shall not allow any unlawful activities to take place upon the Leased Premises. 
 
Tenant shall promptly notify Landlord of any accident to or defect in the water pipes, sewer 
pipes, gas pipes, electric wiring, heating or air conditioning systems or fixtures.  It is agreed that 
Landlord shall not in any case be liable in damages for any temporary breakdown of said 
facilities or discontinuance of services provided by such facilities.  Tenant agrees to take all 
reasonable steps to protect the plumbing during freezing weather. 
 
Plumbing repairs and ordinary maintenance shall be the responsibility of the Tenant.  Repairs 
will include the cost of backup of services and drains from fixtures within the Leased Premises.  
The cost of such service and repair from “backup” will be the sole expense of the Tenant.   
 
During the initial term, Tenant is responsible for all HVAC issues, maintenance of all fixtures and 
components and replacement of any such fixtures and components as long as the contract is 
active.   
 
Tenant shall be responsible for all janitorial service, supplies and associated appliances to be 
used in connection with janitorial services, including paper towel dispensers, paper goods, etc. 
 
Any sign attached to the outside of the building is the responsibility of the Tenant.  Such sign 
must be approved by appropriate municipal authorities and the Landlord.  The Landlord agrees 
to allow Tenant to replace the Parkway Auto Sales sign at the highway so long as the Parkway 
Auto Sales sign is reinstalled in proper working conditions before the Tenant vacates the Leased 
Premises. 
  
Tenant shall have the right to inspect or have inspected the electrical, plumbing and HVAC 
systems prior to the commencement of the Initial Term.  Should any material defect be found, 
Landlord, at Landlord’s expense, shall correct same prior to June 1, 2016.  For purposes of this 
paragraph, the term “material” shall be defined as any repair costing more than two hundred 
fifty ($250) dollars.  
 
 
 

238 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



6.  Utilities and Other Charges:  Tenant shall be responsible for arranging for and paying for all 
electricity, water, telephone, alarm system, gas, internet, and other utility charges for the 
Leased Premises and the deposits for same.  

 
7. Right of Inspection:  Landlord shall have the right to enter the Leased Premises at all reasonable 

hours during the day to inspect the same or to make such repairs and alterations as may be 
necessary for the safety and preservation of the Leased Premises.  Landlord shall make every 
reasonable effort to notify Tenant of inspections. 
 

8. Insurance Provisions:  Landlord shall maintain property and casualty insurance on said property.  
Tenant shall not use or permit upon the Leased Premises anything that will invalidate any 
insurance policy now or hereafter in effect on the Leased Premises or that will increase the rate 
of insurance or cause such insurance to be canceled. 

 
Tenant shall provide his own insurance covering personal property and premises liability with 
minimum liability limits of $1,000,000 and shall name Mark L. Sawyer as Additional Insured.  A 
copy of said policy, or acceptable Certificate of Insurance shall be given to Landlord within five 
(5) business days of inhabiting the premises. 

 
9. Landlord Duties:  Landlord shall be responsible for all repairs to the structure and roof of the 

building.  Landlord will maintain and clean the exterior of the Building, the grounds and the 
parking lot.  Landlord will support Tenant placing approved signage on the outside of the 
building if the Tenant chooses. 

 
Abandonment:  If any time during the term of this Lease, Tenant abandons the Leased Premises, 
Landlord may, at his option, enter the Leased Premises by any means without being liable for 
any prosecution therefore, and without becoming liable to the Tenant for damages of any kind 
whatsoever.Landlord may then at his discretion release the Leased Premises for the whole or 
any part of the then unexpired term and may receive and collect all rents payable by virtue of 
such releasing and, at Landlord’s option, under this Lease during the balance of the unexpired 
term, if this Lease had continued in force. 

 
10. Abandonment.  If any time during the term of this lease, Tenant abandons the Leased Premises, 

Landlord may, at his option, enter the Leased Premises by any means without being liable for 
any prosecution therefore, and without becoming liable to Tenant for damages of any kinds 
whatsoever.  

 
11. Damage or Destruction.  If, during the Initial Term of this Lease or the Renewal Term, the 

demised premises shall be or become damaged by fire or by elements, such damage shall be 
promptly repaired by the Landlord, unless the damage to said premises hereby leased or 
devised be so great that the same cannot be repaired with reasonable diligence so as to be fit 
for occupancy.  In such event, the rent herein provided to be paid for the said Lease Premises 
shall abate and be suspended for a period of time from the date of the damage to the Leased 
Premises hereby leased until the date when the said premises are so repaired as to be fir and 
ready for occupancy by the Tenant.  In such event the tenancy of the Leased Premises hereby 
leased or demised shall not be terminated, but shall remain in force and effect under and by 
virtue of the terms and conditions of this Lease, unless the damage done to the Leased Premises  

239 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



hereby leased shall be so great as to make it impossible to repair the premises which the period 
of ninety (90) days, in which case the Tenant shall have the option of vacating the premises 
hereby leased or demised and of bringing to an end and terminating this Lease; provided, 
however, that the said Tenant  shall not have such option and shall not be allowed to be 
relieved from the obligation of this Lease if the damage done to the premises shall in any wise 
be caused by the intentional act of any agent or representative of the Tenant while acting on 
behalf of the Tenant. 
 

12. If Tenant shall fail to perform or comply with any of the other conditions, term or agreement in 
this Lease as set forth herein within thirty (30) days after notice written by Landlord to Tenant 
specifying the condition to be performed or complied with. 
 
In the event of any default hereunder, Landlord, at any time thereafter, may terminate the 
Lease at its option and/or re-enter the Leased Premises and expel, remove and put out Tenant 
or any person or persons occupying the Leased Premises and remove all personal property there 
from as allowed by law. 
 
Upon re-entry Landlord may, at its option, release the Leased Premises or any party thereof as 
the agent of tenant and Tenant shall pay Landlord the difference between the rent herein 
reserved and imposed for the portion of the term remaining at the time of re-entry and the 
amount received under such releasing for such portion of the term; additionally, Landlord may 
also recover from Tenant any other sums (including rents) then due.  Landlord may also 
terminate these Leases and recover from Tenant any sums then due. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, Tenant shall be responsible for all losses 
(including loss of rents) and damages resulting from any default and/or termination of this 
Lease.  If this Lease is placed in the hands of an attorney, after default or breach, for the 
enforcement of any rights of Landlord herein, Tenant, agrees to pay all costs of such 
enforcement or collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 

13. Surrender of Premises.  At the termination of this Lease, Tenant shall return and surrender the 
Leased Premises hereby demised without demand of the Landlord in the same condition and 
properly cleaned, as they were at the time of execution of this Lease, normal wear and tear 
expected. 
 

14. Assignment and Subletting.  Landlord agrees to the Tenant subletting 1,860 square feet of 
office space to the State of Tennessee for use by Administrators of the Courts (AOC).  The 
term of the lease between the Tenant and the State of Tennessee will not extend beyond the  
term between the Tenant and the Landlord. shall not assign this Lease of sublease the Leased 
Premises, or any part thereof, without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent will 
not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
15. Notice. Any written notice required under this Lease shall be given to Landlord by certified 

United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, at the following address: 
 

 Mark L. Sawyer 2305 Windswept Way, Morristown, TN 37814
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 

240 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Any notice to tenant provided for in this Lease shall be given to Tenant in writing either 
personally, or by mailing , delivering or leaving the same at the address of the Leased Premises 
or by e-mail to: 
 
Bill Brittain, County Mayor, Hamblen County Courthouse, 511 West Second North Street, 
Morristown, TN 37814, or bbrittain@co.hamblen.tn.us (with a “read, receipt message”) 
 

16. Miscellaneous.  The terms and provisions of this Lease are severable such that if any tem or 
provision is declared to invalid or unenforceable by a court of proper jurisdictions, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining terms and provision of this Lease, 
which shall otherwise remain in full force and effect.  The entire understanding between the 
parties is set out in this Lease, this Lease supersedes and voids all prior proposals, letter and 
agreements, oral or written, and no modification or alteration of this Lease shall be effective 
unless evidenced by an instrument in writing signed by all parties.  This Lease shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument this ____________ day of 
_____________________, 2016. 
 
LANDLORD: 
 

BY:         Mark Sawyer and Xiaohua Sawyer 
 
Date: __________________________________ 
 
 
TENANT:  Hamblen County, Tennessee 
 
BY: _____________________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________________ 

241 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar

mailto:bbrittain@co.hamblen.tn.us


242 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



 

 

 

  

Hamblen County Finance Department 

Purchasing       

Policies & Procedures 
Updated May 19, 2016 

243 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



1 | P a g e  

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

I. Introduction and General Information …………………………………………………2 

a. Purpose of this Manual 

b. Application of this Manual 

 

II. Purchasing Department and Relations with Departments ……………………….2-3 

a. Mission  

b. Objective 

c. Purchasing Department  

d. Responsibilities  

 

III. Procurement Method ……………………………………………………………………4-5 

a. Biddable Items 

b. Informal Quotes 

c. Emergency Purchases 

 

IV. Purchasing Forms ……………………………………………………………………….5-6 

a. Purchase Order 

b. Purchase Requisition 

c. Check Request 

 

V. Purchases with Grant Funds …………………………………………………………….6 

 

VI. Vendors ……………………………………………………………………………………...7 

a. Federal, State & Local Law Compliance 

b. Equal Opportunity 

c. Purchase from Minority or Women Owned Businesses, Small Business 

Enterprises and Protected Class Vendor 

d. IRS Form W-9 

e. Tennessee Lawful Employment Act 

 

VII. Finance Department Contact Information …………………………………………….8 

 

 

 

 

  

244 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



2 | P a g e  

 

I. Introduction and General Information 

 

The purchasing department supports the operations of Hamblen County 

Government by functioning as the purchasing unit for the procurement of goods, 

materials, equipment, and services required by the County; and for the disposal 

of surplus property owned by the County.  The purchasing department, a 

division of the finance department, is created per Article XVIII of the Amended 

and Restated Hamblen County Government Financial Management System 

Policies and Procedures, adopted March 19, 2015. 

 

a. Purpose of this Manual 

 

The purpose of this manual is to outline and prescribe the policies and 

procedures in which goods or services must be purchased or disposed of by 

the County, while ensuring the fair and equitable treatment of vendors who 

deal with the procurement system of the County.  The policies and procedures 

herein are based on the rules and regulations amended or adopted, and 

promulgated pursuant to the laws of Hamblen County Government and the 

applicable laws of the State of Tennessee1.  The provisions of this Manual 

shall replace any previous purchasing policies and procedures.  Any part of 

this manual which may conflict with applicable law shall be null and void.  If 

any portion of this Manual is, for any reason, held invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of this Manual. 

 

b. Application of this Manual 

 

i. Regulations and procedures set forth in this manual apply to the 

expenditure of all federal, state, and locally appropriated funds for the 

procurement of any goods, materials, equipment, and services by the 

County.  All purchases must be for the use or benefit of the County. 

 

ii. Regulations and procedures set forth in this manual apply to the 

County’s disposition of surplus property, excluding real property. 

 

This manual may be accessed on the County’s website.  As revisions or 

additions to this manual become necessary, the purchasing department will 

post such revisions on the website.  If there are any questions concerning this 

manual, please contact the purchasing manager. 

  

                                                
1 Amended and Restated Hamblen County Government Financial Management System Policies and 

Procedures, March 19, 2015; Tennessee Code Annotated, Chapter 14, Part 2 County Purchasing Law 

of 1983. 

245 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



3 | P a g e  

 

II. Purchasing Department and Relations with Departments 

 

a. Mission.  The mission of the purchasing department is to provide the most 

cost-effective method of procuring goods, materials, and services for Hamblen 

County Government while adhering to the procurement laws of Hamblen 

County Government and the State of Tennessee, as applicable. 

 

b. Objective.  The overall objective of the purchasing department is to serve as 

the County’s purchasing unit through which the County and its departments 

may obtain needed goods or services, via competitive concerns, at competitive 

costs and in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

 

c. Purchasing Department.  The purchasing department is a division within 

the County’s Finance Department, and is located in the Hamblen County 

Courthouse, Administrative Building, 511 West Second North Street, 

Morristown, Tennessee, 37814. 

 

d. Responsibilities.  The purchasing department, which functions as a service 

for all other departments of the County, will purchase on a competitive basis 

all goods or services on behalf of each department of the County.  The 

purchasing department must ensure procurements are conducted with 

integrity, fairness, and openness and in accordance with local and applicable 

state and federal laws.  The purchasing department’s responsibilities include, 

but are not limited to, the following: 

 

i. Developing policies and procedures for implementing an economical 

and efficient purchasing system; 

ii. Review of all contracts of purchases for biddable supplies, materials, 

equipment, and other needs of the County; 

iii. Ensuring that no purchase or contract be made when the bid prices 

exceed the current market price for the same merchandise or service; 

iv. Ensuring that purchases and contracts be awarded based on the 

lowest and/or best bid; 

v. Review specifications and changes made by departments to allow for 

maximum competition of prospective bidders; 

vi. Preparation of formal and informal bids; 

vii. Collection of sealed bids; 

viii. Opening of sealed bids through a procedure open to the public; 

ix. Evaluate, compare, and submit bids for approval by the Legislative 

Body; 

x. Issuing purchase orders and contracts; 

xi. Verification of receipt of merchandise or services; 

xii. Accept requisitions by the various departments, agency, or official; 

xiii. Verify budget appropriations before authorizing a purchase and 

issuing a purchase order; 

xiv. Provide for emergency purchases, total cost bidding, blanket 

purchases for small orders, grouping of purchases of the various 

departments, and other methods for receiving the most competitive 

price and best bid;   

246 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



4 | P a g e  

 

xv. Ensure that emergency purchases be limited to needs arising which 

are not normally foreseeable, and make known the policy that 

emergency purchases shall not be permissible if a department or 

agency fails to properly plan for the need, proper purchasing 

procedures, and delivery time. 

 

 

III. Procurement Method 

 

a. Biddable Items 

 

i. “Biddable Items” means any need of the County where more than one 

(1) bidder or contractor in the County’s trade area can provide the 

material or service.  Specifications shall not be written to exclude 

vendors or contractors or limit the bidding to a specific vendor or 

contractor. 

 

ii. Purchases for like items, unless covered by an exemption, estimated to 

exceed $9,999.99 in any fiscal year will be competitively bid utilizing a 

sealed bid procedure2.  Bid specifications and a suggested vendor 

distribution list should be provided to the Purchasing Manager by the 

department making the purchase.  The Purchasing Manager will 

format the specifications into a standard Invitation to Bid.  The 

Purchasing Manager shall solicit sealed bids by public notice inserted 

at least once in a newspaper of county-wide circulation (i.e., Citizen 

Tribune), no less than five (5) days prior to the final date for 

submitting bids.  A bid tabulation will be prepared by the Purchasing 

Manager following the public bid opening.  Finance Committee and 

Legislative Body approval of the best bid is required before a purchase 

order can be issued.  Hamblen County Government reserves the right 

of accepting and/or rejecting any and/or all bids or parts of bids when 

doing so serves the best interest of Hamblen County Government. 

 

iii. A valid State of Tennessee contract may be utilized in lieu of a bid.  

Quotes from an approved Purchasing Cooperative may be considered 

as a bid. 

 

iv. “Piggybacking”  may be considered  

 

b. Informal Quotes 

 

i. Applicable Statute:  T.C.A. § 5-14-205 

 

ii. All purchases, leases or lease-purchase arrangements with 

expenditures of less than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) in any fiscal 

year may be made in the open market without newspaper notice, but 

shall, wherever possible, be based upon at least three (3) competitive 

                                                
2 T.C.A. § 5-14-204 

247 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



5 | P a g e  

 

quotes.  Price, quality of goods/services, and vendor performance will 

be taken into consideration.  In the event the quote that serves the 

best interest of Hamblen County Government is not the lowest quote, 

the department head requesting the purchase shall submit a memo 

with the three (3) price quotes documenting the reasons the chosen 

vendor was selected.  

 

 

c. Emergency Purchases 

 

i. Applicable Statute:  TC.A. § 5-14-204; T.C.A. § 5-21-119 

 

ii. Emergency purchases shall be limited to needs arising that are not 

normally foreseeable.  Emergency purchases are purchases which are 

necessary to avert hazards which may threaten health and safety, to 

protect from damage, or to avoid a major disruption of governmental 

activities.  Emergency purchases shall not be permissible if a 

department or agency fails to properly plan for the need, proper 

purchasing procedures, and delivery time. 

 

iii. A record of any emergency purchase shall be made by the person or 

body authorizing such emergency purchase, and shall specify the 

amount paid, the terms purchased, from whom the purchase was 

made, and the nature of the emergency.  A report of any emergency 

purchase shall be made as soon as possible to the County Legislative 

Body and the County Mayor, and shall include all items of information 

as required in the record.  

 

 

IV. Purchasing Forms 

 

a. Purchase Order.  The purchase order is written evidence of the agreement 

between the buyer and the merchant at agreed upon prices, terms, and 

delivery dates.  Purchase orders are required when purchasing goods and/or 

services.  Purchase orders must be completed PRIOR TO goods and/or 

services being purchased. 

 

b. Purchase Requisition.  The purchase requisition is the method in which 

the department requests a purchase order for goods and/or services to be 

purchased.  The purchase requisition informs the purchasing department of 

the goods and/or services needed by the department, and which budgetary 

line item should be charged for the purchase.  A purchase requisition shall be 

completed by the department head, elected official, or their designee.  

Purchase requisitions not completely filled out will result in a delay in 

processing the purchase order. 

 

c. Check Request.  The check request is submitted for goods or services that 

have been classified by the purchasing guidelines as not requiring a purchase 

order (see list below).  Completed check request forms and corresponding 

248 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



6 | P a g e  

 

invoices are submitted to the Accounts Payable Manager for processing and 

payment.  The following items are eligible to be submitted on a check request: 

 

i. Auditing Services 

ii. Banking Fees 

iii. Bid Advertisements 

iv. Newspaper Subscriptions 

v. Periodical Subscriptions 

vi. Bonds 

vii. Boards and Committee Member Payments 

viii. Contributions to Component Units 

ix. Dues 

x. Freight/Shipping 

xi. Inter-Departmental Billing 

xii. Jury Fees 

xiii. Legal Fees 

xiv. Cell Phone Charges 

xv. Payroll Reimbursements 

xvi. Reimbursements (i.e., travel, in-service, etc.) 

xvii. Tuition 

xviii. Utilities 

1. Telephone 

2. Natural Gas 

3. Electricity 

xix. Vehicle Tags 

xx. Workman’s Compensation Payments 

 

 

V. Purchases with Grant Funds 

 

County personnel must exercise care to comply with applicable requirements or 

special terms of any grant agreements or donations.  All applicable local, state, 

and federal regulations must be followed.  Purchases made with local, state, and 

federal grant funds shall be conducted in a manner consistent with grant 

contracts and in a fashion to provide maximum open, free, and fair competition. 

                

County personnel must exercise in a fashion to provide maximum open, free and 

fair competition.  

 

To achieve the objective stated above, purchases made with federal grant funds 

will be made following an open bid process that involves the issuance of a public 

notice on the county website and publication in a newspaper of regional 

circulation. The bid proposals will be opened publicly and then analyzed to 

ensure they meet all the bid requirements and specifications.  Based on the bid 

analysis, the County’s purchasing manager will recommend to the county 

legislative body the vendor and price for the purchase of the item or service 

sought through the bid process.  The county legislative body must approve the 

lowest and/or best bid before a purchase order can be issued for the item/service.  

 

249 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



7 | P a g e  

 

Documentation of the bid process, the proposals received, bid approval, purchase 

order and delivery receipt will be maintained for five (5) years in the grant file 

maintained by the county’s grant manager. 

                  

 

VI. Vendors 

 

a. Federal, State, and Local Law Compliance.  Vendors must comply with 

all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including but not limited to 

Title VI of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, prohibiting discrimination in 

employment practices or in the performance of the resulting contract, on the 

grounds of race, age, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap and/or 

disability, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law. 

 

b. Equal Opportunity.  Equal opportunity shall be given to all eligible 

vendors.  Each order will be placed on the basis of quality, price, delivery, and 

service history.  Hamblen County Government considers all eligible vendors 

without regard to race color, religion, creed, gender, national origin, age, 

disability, marital or veteran status, or any other legally protected status.  

Invitations to Bid are open to any vendor, published online, and in local 

newspapers to encourage all applicable vendors to participate, including 

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprises and other small, minority, and 

women-owned businesses.  Contractors doing business with Hamblen County 

Government shall indicate their compliance with Title VI of the Federal Civil 

Rights Act of 1964. 

 

c. Purchases from Minority or Women-Owned Businesses, Small 

Business Enterprises, and Any Protected Class Vendor.  Hamblen 

County Government extends purchasing opportunities to all minority, 

women-owned business, small business enterprises, and any protected class 

vendor through the public competitive bid process, which includes public 

notice of all sealed bid opportunities.  All protected class vendors are 

encouraged to do business with Hamblen County Government. 

 

d. IRS Form W-9.  To comply with Internal Revenue Service requirements, all 

vendors who perform any type of service for Hamblen County Government 

are required to have a current IRS Form W-9 on file with the Hamblen 

County Finance Department. 

 

e. Tennessee Lawful Employment Act.  To comply with the Tennessee 

Lawful Employment Act, non-employees (individuals hired as independent 

contractors) must have on file any one of the following documents: 

 

i. Valid Tennessee driver’s license or photo identification 

ii. Valid out-of-state driver’s license 

iii. U.S. birth certificate 

iv. Valid U.S. passport 

v. U.S. certificate of birth abroad of a U.S. citizen 

vi. Certificate of citizenship 

250 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



8 | P a g e  

 

vii. Certificate of naturalization 

viii. U.S. citizen identification card 

ix. Valid alien registration documentation or proof of current immigration 

registration. 

 

 

VII. Finance Department Contact Information 

 

 Hamblen County Mayor’s Office Main Line:  423.586.1931 

 

 Purchasing Manager: 423.586.1931 ext. 2201 

 

 Finance Director:  423.586.1931 ext. 2205 

 

 

 

 

251 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Hamblen County Government 

Public Services Committee 
Monday, May 9, 2016 

Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 
  

MINUTES 
 

Members Present:     
Randy DeBord Tim Goins Rick Eldridge Hubert Davis Larry Carter 
Stancil Ford Joe Huntsman, Sr. John Smyth Johnny Walker  
 
Members Absent:  
None 

 
Call to Order 
Chairman Shipley called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m. 
 
Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee  
Marilyn Fulpz 
 
Old Business 
a. None 

 
New Business 
a. Resolution 16-08 to Amend the Zoning Map of Hamblen County, Tennessee by Rezoning District 05, 

Tax Map 0054E, Group B, Parcel 012.01 Bernie Circle, Talbott, TN 37877 Lot #23B-Blue Grass Acres 
From R-1 to A-1. The reason to rezone the property is for the installation of a mobile home. The 
Morristown Regional Planning Commission passed the request to the County Commission without a 
recommendation. The property that has been requested to be rezoned is in the Urban Growth 
Boundary. Discussion proceeded.  Rick Eldridge put a motion on the floor to deny the rezoning and 
after discussion amongst the commissioners about how best to word the motion he restated his 
motion as follows: 

Motion (Rick Eldridge/Tim Goins) to Approve Resolution 16-08 to Amend the Zoning Map of 
Hamblen County, Tennessee by Rezoning District 05, Tax Map 0054E, Group B, Parcel 012.01 
Bernie Circle, Talbott, TN 37877 Lot #23B-Blue Grass Acres From R-1 to A-1. 

 Aye Nay Pass Abstain 

Larry Carter  X   

Hubert Davis  X   

Randy DeBord  X   

Rick Eldridge  X   

Stancil Ford  X   

Joe Huntsman, Sr.  X   

Tim Goins  X   

Howard Shipley  X   

John Smyth  X   

Johnny Walker  X   

   0 Yes/9 No -  Motion Fails 
 
 
 

252 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 2 of 2 

 

Items of Interest  
a. Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society – Financial Reports for January/February/March 2016 
b. Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society Contract Renewal Letter 

 
 

Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Shipley adjourned the meeting at 12:23 p.m. 

253 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



Page 1 of 1 

 

 

   Hamblen County Government 

  PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, May 9, 2016 

Immediately Following Adjournment of Finance Committee 

Hamblen County Health Department Conference Room 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Howard Shipley 

 

 

2. Visitors Wishing to Address the Committee – Chairman Howard Shipley

 (Visitors will be allotted 5 minutes to speak) 

 

 

3. Old Business – Chairman Howard Shipley 

a. None 

 

 

4. New Business – Chairman Howard Shipley 

a. Resolution 16-08 to Amend the Zoning Map of Hamblen County, Tennessee 

by Rezoning District 05, Tax Map 0054E, Group B, Parcel 012.01 Bernie 

Circle, Talbott, TN 37877 Lot #23B-Blue Grass Acres From R-1 to A-1 - 

Planning and Zoning Dept. Manager Tina Whitaker  

 

 

5. Items of Interest (No Action Necessary) – Chairman Howard Shipley 

a. Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society – Financial Reports for 

January/February/March 2016 

b. Morristown-Hamblen Humane Society Contract Renewal Letter 

 

 

6. Adjournment – Chairman Howard Shipley 

PUBLIC SE RVI CES 

COMMITTEE  

Howard Shipley 

Chairman 

 

Tim Goins 

Vice-Chairman 

 

Rick Eldridge 

Ex-Officio 

 

Larry Carter 

Member 

 

Hubert Davis 

Member 

 

Randy DeBord 

Member 

 

Stancil Ford 

Member 

 

Joe Huntsman, Sr. 

Member 

 

John Smyth 

Member 

 

Johnny Walker 

Member 

 

254 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



255 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



256 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



257 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



258 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



259 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



260 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



261 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



262 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



263 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



264 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



265 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



266 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



267 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



268 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



269 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



270 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



271 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



272 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



273 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



274 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



275 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



276 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



277 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar



278 May 19, 2016 Commission Meeting Return to Regular Calendar




